
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Executive Cabinet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda and Reports  
 

For consideration on  
 
 

Thursday, 6th September 
2007 

 
 

In the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Chorley 

 

At 5.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PROCEDURE FOR PUBLIC QUESTIONS/SPEAKING AT EXECUTIVE CABINET MEETINGS 
 

� Questions should be submitted to the Democratic Services Section by midday, two 
working days prior to each Executive Cabinet meeting to allow time to prepare appropriate 
responses and investigate the issue if necessary. 

� A maximum period of 3 minutes will be allowed for a question from a member of the public 
on an item on the agenda.  A maximum period of 30 minutes to be allocated for public 
questions if necessary at each meeting. 

� The question to be answered by the Executive Member with responsibility for the service 
area or whoever is most appropriate. 

� On receiving a reply the member of the public will be allowed to ask one supplementary 
question. 

� Members of the public will be able to stay for the rest of the meeting should they so wish 
but will not be able to speak on any other agenda item upon using their allocated 3 
minutes. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chief Executive’s Office 

Continued…. 
 

� (01257) 515151   Fax (01257) 515150 www.chorley.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Tony Uren  
Direct Dial: (01257) 515122 
E-mail address: tony.uren@chorley.gov.uk 
Date: 29 August 2007 
 

Chief Executive:  Donna Hall 
 

 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
EXECUTIVE CABINET - THURSDAY, 6TH SEPTEMBER 2007 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Executive Cabinet to be held in the Council Chamber, 
Town Hall, Chorley on Thursday, 6th September 2007 at 5.00 pm. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Apologies for absence   
 
2. Declarations of Any Interests   
 
 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal interest in respect of 

matters contained in this agenda. If the interest arises only as result of your membership 
of another public body or one to which you have been appointed by the Council then you 
only need to declare it if you intend to speak. 
  
If the personal interest is a prejudicial interest, you must withdraw from the meeting. 
Normally you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may remain in the 
room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave immediately. In either case you 
must not seek to improperly influence a decision on the matter. 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held 
on 9 August 2007 (enclosed). 
 

4. Public Questions   
 
 Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a question(s) on an 

item(s) will be asked to put their question(s) to the respective Executive Member(s).  Each 
member of the public will be allowed to ask one supplementary question within his/her 
allotted three minutes. 
 

HEALTH, LEISURE AND WELL BEING ITEM (INTRODUCED BY THE EXECUTIVE MEMBER, 
COUNCILLOR M PERKS) 
 
5. Sports Village - Feasibility Study  (Pages 7 - 52) 
 
 Report of Director of Leisure and Cultural Services, with accompanying Feasibility  Study 

(enclosed).  

Town Hall 
Market Street 

Chorley 
Lancashire 

PR7 1DP 



 
The Consultants commissioned to produce the feasibility study, Strategic Leisure, have 
been invited to make a short presentation on their findings.  
 

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ITEM (INTRODUCED BY THE EXECUTIVE LEADER, COUNCILLOR 
P GOLDSWORTHY) 
 
6. Forward Plan  (Pages 53 - 58) 
 
 To receive and consider the Council’s Forward Plan for the four months period 

commencing 1 September 2007 (enclosed). 
 

CORPORATE POLICY AND PERFORMANCE ITEMS (INTRODUCED BY THE EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER, COUNCILLOR MRS P CASE) 
 
7. The Chorley Partnership - Progress Report  (Pages 59 - 64) 
 
 Report of the Director of Policy and Performance (Assistant Chief Executive) (enclosed). 

 
8. A Sustainable Community Strategy for Chorley,  2007 - 2025  (Pages 65 - 92) 
 
 Report of Director of Policy and Performance (Assistant Chief Executive), with attached 

draft of the refreshed Community Strategy for Chorley (enclosed). 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION ITEMS (INTRODUCED THE EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER, COUNCILLOR P MALPAS) 
 
9. Chorley Local Development Framework - Sustainable Resources Development Plan 

- Submission Document  (Pages 93 - 132) 
 
 Report of Director of Development and Regeneration, with accompanying Submission 

Document (enclosed).  
 

10. Strategic Housing Priorities  (Pages 133 - 138) 
 
 Report of Director of Development and Regeneration (enclosed).  

 
STREETSCENE, NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ENVIRONMENT ITEM (INTRODUCED BY THE 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER, COUNCILLOR E BELL) 
 
11. Car Parking Strategy  (Pages 139 - 142) 
 
 Report of Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment (enclosed).  

 
12. Any other item(s) that the Chair decides is/are urgent   
 
13. Exclusion of Press and Public   
 
 To consider the exclusion of the press and public for the following item of business on the 

ground that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.  
 

STREETSCENE, NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ENVIRONMENT ITEM (INTRODUCED BY THE 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER, COUNCILLOR E BELL) 
 
14. Refuse and Recycling Contract - Options Appraisal  (Pages 143 - 150) 
 
 Report of Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment (enclosed). 

 



 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
ENCS 
 
 
Distribution 
 
1. Agenda and reports to all Members of the Executive Cabinet, Lead Members and Chief 

Officers for attendance. 
 

This information can be made available to you in larger print 

or on audio tape, or translated into your own language.  

Please telephone 01257 515118 to access this service. 
 

 
 

 

 
 

01257 515822 

01257 515823 



This page is intentionally left blank



Executive Cabinet 1  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 9 August 2007 

Executive Cabinet 
 

Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 9 August 2007 
 

Present: Councillor Peter Goldsworthy (Executive Leader in the Chair), Councillor Pat Case 
(Deputy Leader of the Council) and Councillors Eric Bell, Alan Cullens, Mark Perks and 
John Walker 
 

 
 

07.EC.80 APOLOGY FOR ABSENCE  
 

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor P Malpas. 
 

07.EC.81 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS  
 

There were no declarations of interest by any of the Executive Members in any of the 
agenda items. 
 

07.EC.82 MINUTES  
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held on 26 June 2007 were 
confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader. 
 

07.EC.83 PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

The Executive Cabinet had not received any requests from members of the public to 
ask a question(s) on any of the meeting’s agenda items. 
 

07.EC.84 PROPOSED NEW CHORLEY REGISTER OFFICE  
 

The Executive Leader welcomed Ms G Greeson (Superintendent Registrar for 
Lancashire), who had been invited to attend the meeting on behalf of the Registration 
Services Manager with Lancashire County Council to present the proposals for the 
development of the new Chorley Register Office on part of the West Street Car Park 
area. 
 
Ms Greeson circulated sketch plans of the new facility to replace the current offices at 
St Georges Street, which were not now ‘fit for purpose’.  The new premises would be 
fully accessible by disabled persons, with separate entrances and waiting areas for 
wedding parties and persons registering births and deaths. 
 
It was envisaged that the construction of the new Register Office would necessitate 
the loss of approximately 40 car parking spaces on the West Street Car Park, but the 
Executive Cabinet was advised that the Officers were currently reviewing the situation 
regarding town centre car parking to identify means of mitigating the anticipated loss 
of current spaces to the Register Office and the Market Walk extension. 
 
The Cabinet was reminded that the application for planning permission for the new 
facility would be determined by the County Council and that the Borough Council 
would be invited to make appropriate representations on the proposal. 
 
The Executive Cabinet and other Members present questioned Ms Greeson on a 
number of pertinent aspects of the plans, but generally welcomed and supported the 
new facility, which would improve the customer service and complement the Council’s 
Corporate Strategy. 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 1



Executive Cabinet 2  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 9 August 2007 

The Executive Leader thanked Mrs Greeson for her attendance at the conclusion of 
her address and debate. 
 

07.EC.85 FIRST QUARTER PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT FOR 2007/08  
 

The Director of Policy and Performance (Assistant Chief Executive) presented a 
report which set out and reviewed the Authority’s performance on the delivery of 
key projects in the Corporate Strategy and against national Best Value 
Performance Indicators (BVPI) during the first quarter of 2007/08 ending on 30 
June 2007. 
 
The report revealed an overall commendable performance on the delivery of the 
Corporate Strategy’s key projects, 66% of which had been completed and a 
further 25% progressing on course.  Only four projects were currently behind 
schedule for completion, owing to varying degrees of over-run on time, but the 
Officers were optimistic that the projects would be delivered ultimately. 
 
The Council’s performance against the Best Value Performance Indicators also 
continued to improve, with only limited instances of deteriorating performance 
which were being carefully monitored, 66% of the indicators had showed 
improvement or consistent performance, and action plans had been developed to 
bring back on target the four BVPIs where performance was 5% or more below 
target. 
 
In response to Members’ enquiries, the Executive Member for Corporate Policy 
and Performance confirmed that mechanisms had been put in place to ensure that 
regular reports monitoring the performance of the Chorley Local Strategic 
Partnership in its delivery of identified key projects would be presented to future 
Executive Cabinet meetings. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

07.EC.86 REVENUE BUDGET, 2007/08 - MONITORING  
 

The Executive Cabinet received a report of the Director of Finance monitoring the 
Council’s financial performance during the first quarter period of 2007/08 in 
comparison with the budgetary and efficiency savings targets for the current financial 
year in respect of the General Fund. 
 
The report revealed a forecast overspend of £103,000 and highlighted the need for 
close scrutiny of a small number of budget areas, including housing benefit payments 
and the concessionary travel budget. 
 
The Council’s Officers were examining means of ensuring that budget spending and 
savings targets were achieved and were confident that further savings, particularly 
through staff turnover, would help to deliver a balanced budget at the financial year 
end. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

07.EC.87 PLANNING FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE - WHITE PAPER  
 

The Executive Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Development and 
Regeneration on the principal features of the Government’s White Paper ‘Planning for 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 2



Executive Cabinet 3  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 9 August 2007 

a Sustainable Future’ and outlining the likely implications of the proposals for the 
Borough Council. 
 
The report summarised the main provisions of the White Paper which included plans 
for: 
 
● a new policy framework for encouraging sustainable economic development; 
● an independent Infrastructure Planning Commission to decide major 

infrastructure schemes and mechanisms to allow more opportunities for public 
engagement and Parliamentary scrutiny of the process; 

● greater freedoms and flexibilities for minor extensions to homes, businesses and 
micro generation projects; 

● the streamlining of the planning application process; 
● the possible discretion for Councils to set planning application fee rates. 
 
An appendix to the report contained the Director’s suggested responses to the White 
Paper’s consultation. 
 
Whilst much of the White Paper concentrated on the streamlining of the processes 
required to deliver major physical infrastructure projects, few, if any, such schemes 
were likely to be undertaken in the Borough.  The extension of permitted development 
rights would reduce the processing workload, but the need to respond to an increased 
number of enquiries into the types of development that would require permission, and 
more applications for lawful development certificates, would necessitate fees being 
charged to cover the advisory service.  The possible discretion to allow local planning 
authorities to fix their own scale of fees for planning applications was also welcomed, 
provided that the current income source was not jeopardized. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the report be noted and that the recommended responses to the 
consultation questions on the ‘Planning for a Sustainable Future’ White Paper 
be endorsed. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
To ensure that the Borough Council’s views and suggestions on the Government’s 
plans to streamline aspects of the planning system are communicated to the 
Government. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
None. 
 

07.EC.88 NORTH WEST REGIONAL SPATIAL STRATEGY - KEY POINTS FROM THE 
EXAMINATION IN PUBLIC PANEL'S REPORT  

 
The Executive Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Development and 
Regeneration on the key recommendations of the Panel appointed to hear and 
consider evidence on topics contained in the draft Regional Spatial Strategy for 
North West England produced by the North West Regional Assembly, in so far as 
the recommendations related to the joint representations of Chorley, Preston and 
South Ribble Councils to the draft Strategy.  The new Regional Strategy, which 
would replace the current North West Regional Planning Guidance, would set out 
the strategic planning policies and issues for the region. 
 
The report summarised the Panel’s responses to the three authorities’ joint 
representations, a number of which had been accepted and some of which had 
been rejected.  The Officers highlighted in particular the Panel’s reply to the 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 3



Executive Cabinet 4  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 9 August 2007 

Councils’ contention that the target for the proportion of new housing in brownfield 
land within the three Boroughs should be reduced from at least 80% to 75%, 
which had recommended a lower proportion of 70%. 
 
The Panel had identified a number of weaknesses in the draft Strategy 
(summarised in the submitted report), which it considered could only be rectified 
through a further partial review.  There was no formal opportunity for 
representations to be made on the Panel’s findings, which would be considered by 
the Secretary of State prior to his publication of Proposed Changes to the 
Regional Spatial Strategy, expected in October 2007.  The Local Development 
Framework was required to conform generally to, and derive much of its strategic 
content from, the Regional Strategy.  Therefore, as the deficiencies in the draft 
Regional Strategy were likely to delay the production of the Local Development 
Framework if a further review of the Regional Strategy was required, the Officers 
were anxious for the Council’s expressed concerns on the Panel’s findings to be 
communicated immediately to the Government Office for the North West. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That representations be made to the Government Office for the North West 
expressing concern about the Panel’s findings of deficiencies in the draft 
Regional Spatial Strategy and its recommendations concerning a partial 
review of the Strategy, urging the Secretary of State to find ways to bridge 
the deficiencies so that the Local Development Framework production can 
process on schedule on a firm, strategic policy foundation. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
In order to ensure that the Government Office for the North West fully appreciates 
the Borough Council’s concerns and, hopefully, increases the chances of a more 
complete Regional Spatial Strategy being produced. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
The Council could await the Secretary of State’s Proposed Changes, but this 
would preclude the implications of the Panel’s recommendations at the local level 
from being expressed in an effort to identify present solutions. 
 

07.EC.89 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 

Decision made: 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the ground that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972. 
 

07.EC.90 A CUSTOMER FOCUSED COUNCIL - IMPLEMENTING THE OUTCOMES OF 
CHORLEY'S BUSINESS PROCESS ARCHITECTURE PROJECT  

 
The Chief Executive presented a report on the outcome of a recent major exercise to 
review the whole of the Council’s business processes. 
 
The project has resulted in recommendations to alter the Authority’s top level 
management structure, entailing the disestablishment of one post and the pursuance 
of shared financial services with South Ribble Borough Council. 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 4



Executive Cabinet 5  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 9 August 2007 

Decision made: 
 
That the report be noted and the revised organisational structure set out in 
Appendix 2 to the submitted report be approved. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
The new structure will assist the Council’s endeavours to become an ‘excellent’ rated 
Council by ensuring that priority is focused on services being tailored to the needs of 
customers. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive Leader 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 5



Agenda Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Leisure and Cultural 
Services 

(Introduced by the Executive 
Member for Health, Leisure and 

Well Being) 

Executive Cabinet 06/09/2007 

 
 

 

POTENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OF A SPORTS VILLAGE IN 

CHORLEY 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To consider a feasibility study into the development of a Sports Village in Chorley. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. That the project does not move forward due to a lack of funding (capital and revenue) and 
a lack of any identified strategic context. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. The report assesses the need for a Sports Village in Chorley, looks at the potential facility 
mix and the capital and revenue costings of such a facility and then brings this together into 
a conclusion and recommendation.  Given the revenue and capital costs of the project and 
the lack of any strategic context, it is not considered appropriate to proceed with the project. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

4. As explained previously, the revenue and capital costs of the proposed project would, if it 
were to proceed, have a significant impact on the Council’s revenue and capital budgets.  
There is no local strategic context for the project.  If it were to proceed this would entail the 
Council and its partners revisiting all other previously agreed priorities.  This course of 
action is not considered to be appropriate in the light of the feasibility study. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

 

5. One option would have been to progress with the project.  As previously mentioned, it is 
recommended that this option is not progressed for financial and strategic reasons. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 7



 
 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
6. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

 Improved access to public services  

3 

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

 

3 
Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

 

3 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

 Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

 

3 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
7. Following calls for the Council to consider a Sports Village project in the Borough, the 

Council obtained funding from the North West Development Agency to commission a 
feasibility study.  The feasibility study was undertaken by Strategic Leisure and 
commenced in January 2007.  The final report was prepared in July 2007. 

 

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 
8. A copy of the feasibility study is attached to this report. 
 
9. In addition to the report, Strategic Leisure will attend the Executive Cabinet meeting and 

give a presentation on the feasibility study. 
 
10. As Members would expect, there is a lot of enthusiasm for new sports facilities within the 

Borough.  This is evidenced by the favourable comments made by the organisations who 
were consulted. 

 
11. However, the report identifies two significant areas of weakness.  The first relates to the 

strategic context.  The development of such a facility does not appear in the Borough’s 
Community Plan or in the Council’s Corporate Strategy.  As Members will see in the 
feasibility study, it does not figure in the strategic thinking of many partner organisations.  
Clearly, if resources were to be diverted to a project of this nature, this would have a 
significant impact on the Council’s ability to deliver the objectives in the Corporate 
Strategy and to contribute to the wider objectives in the Community Plan. 

 
12. The second area of weakness relates to finances.  The feasibility study identifies the 

capital costs for the project to be circa £10m and the revenue costs to be £300,000 per 
year.  In terms of the capital costs, the study has identified that there are limited 
opportunities to secure external funding and if any funding was secured there would be a 
significant capital funding gap that would need to be bridged by the Council.  With revenue 
funding of £300,000 required each year, it is also envisaged that the Council would be 
requested to make a significant contribution to this gap on an annual basis.  Given the 
Council’s current commitments, it is not considered affordable. 

 
13. Following the recommendation in the study not to proceed, there are a number of actions 

that could be looked at in more detail.  Some relate to wider sports provision in the 
Borough.  Officers will review these in consultation with the respective Executive Members 
and include them in future Directorate Improvement Plans, as appropriate. 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 8



 
IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
14. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Director’s comments 

are included: 
 

Finance 3 Customer Services   

Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  
Legal    

 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
15. As the Director of Leisure and Cultural Services has stated, the project, if it were to 

proceed, would require circa £10m of capital funding and in excess of £300,000 per year.  
Given the Council’s current financial commitments, a project of this scale simply is not 
affordable. 

 
 
 
 
JAMIE CARSON 
DIRECTOR OF LEISURE AND CULTURAL SERVICES 
 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Jamie Carson 5815 22 August 2007  

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 9



Agenda Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 11



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 12



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 13



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 14



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 15



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 16



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 17



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 18



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 19



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 20



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 21



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 22



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 23



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 24



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 25



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 26



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 27



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 28



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 29



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 30



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 31



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 32



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 33



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 34



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 35



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 36



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 37



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 38



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 39



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 40



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 41



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 42



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 43



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 44



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 45



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 46



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 47



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 48



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 49



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 50



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 51



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 52



C
H

O
R

L
E

Y
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 F
O

U
R

 M
O

N
T

H
 P

E
R

IO
D

 1
 S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0
0
7
 T

O
 3

1
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
0
7

 

 
T

h
is

 F
o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t,

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
r 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 e
x
p
e
c
t 
to

 t
a
k
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
fo

u
r 

m
o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
T

h
e
 P

la
n
 i
s
 r

o
lle

d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 e
v
e
ry

 m
o
n
th

 a
n
d
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 1
4
 d

a
y
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 b

e
g

in
n
in

g
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

. 
 A

 K
e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

s
: 

 1
. 

A
n
y
 e

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 (

a
s
 o

p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 d
e
c
is

io
n
) 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
c
u
rr

in
g
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
r 

th
e
 m

a
k
in

g
 

o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
: 

 •
 A

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t

h
a
t 
im

p
a
c
ts

 u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

b
y
 £

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

r 
m

o
re

, 
o
r 

•
 A

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
w

o
rt

h
 £

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

r 
m

o
re

, 
o
r 

•
 A

 n
e
w

 o
r 

u
n
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
£
1
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

r 
m

o
re

. 
 2
. 

A
n
y
 e

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
in

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l,
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l,
 s

o
c
ia

l 
o
r 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 t
e
rm

s
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 l
iv

in
g

 o
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

in
 t

w
o
 o

r 
m

o
re

 e
le

c
to

ra
l 
w

a
rd

s
  

- 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
y
 p

la
n
s
 o

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 m

e
a
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
. 

 3
. 

A
s
 a

 m
a
tt
e
r 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
c
h
o
ic

e
, 
th

e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
a
n
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
is

s
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 F

u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.
 

 T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

a
re

: 
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

P
e
te

r 
G

o
ld

s
w

o
rt

h
y
  

L
e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

P
a
tr

ic
ia

 C
a
s
e
  

D
e
p
u
ty

 L
e
a
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
, 
P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

E
ri
c
 B

e
ll 

 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

A
la

n
 C

u
lle

n
s
  

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

P
e
te

r 
M

a
lp

a
s
  

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

M
a
rk

 P
e
rk

s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 

L
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 W

e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

J
o
h
n
 W

a
lk

e
r 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r,

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 a

n
d
 L

e
g

a
l 

 A
n
y
o
n
e
 w

is
h
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
 m

a
y
 d

o
 s

o
 b

y
 c

o
n
ta

c
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

lis
te

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
e
a
c
h
 k

e
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
, 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t

im
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
. 

 U
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 R
u
le

s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
, 
a
 K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
, 

u
n
le

s
s
: 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 53



 

•
 

It
 i
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
; 

•
 

5
 c

le
a
r 

d
a
y
s
 h

a
v
e
 l
a
p
s
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
; 

a
n
d
 

•
 

If
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 a

t 
a
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t,

 5
 c

le
a
r 

d
a
y
s
 n

o
ti
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
. 

 T
h
e
 l
a
w

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

o
r 

u
rg

e
n
t 
k
e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
, 

e
v
e
n
 t
h
o
u
g

h
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 R

u
le

 1
8
 (

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
E

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
) 

a
n
d
 R

u
le

 1
9
 (

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
U

rg
e
n
c
y
) 

o
f 

th
e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 R
u
le

s
. 

 C
o
p
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
y
 b

e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll,

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
, 

P
R

7
 1

D
P

 o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
: 

w
w

w
.c

h
o
rl
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

•
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 

•
 

F
o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 

•
 

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 

•
 

T
h
e
 m

in
u
te

s
 o

r 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 n

o
ti
c
e
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 k

e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 b
e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 5
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a
y
s
 a

ft
e
r 

h
a
v
in

g
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 a
re

 w
e
lc

o
m

e
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 a
t 
th

e
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll,

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
. 

T
h
e
 d

a
te

s
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 a

re
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 w

w
w

.c
h
o
rl
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 o

r 
y
o
u
 m

a
y
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
th

e
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

0
1
2
5
7
 -

5
1
5
1
1
8
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
. 

   D
 H

a
ll

 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

 P
u

b
li

c
a
ti

o
n

 D
a
te

: 
1
7
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
0
7
 

 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 54



 D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 b
e
 

ta
k
e
n

 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 b
y
 

R
e
le

v
a
n

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 

H
o

ld
e
r 

E
a
rl

ie
s
t 

D
a
te

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 c
a
n

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
e
e
s
 

M
e
th

o
d

(s
) 

o
f 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
D

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
ta

k
e
r 

R
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 

to
 t

h
e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

b
y
 t

h
e
 

d
a
te

 s
ta

te
d

 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

te
rm

s
 f
o
r 

a
c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
t 
th

e
 

G
ill

ib
ra

n
d
 L

in
k
 

R
o
a
d
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

4
 O

c
t 

2
0
0
7
 

N
o
n
e
  

 
N

o
n
e
  

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

A
rb

it
ra

to
r 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 t

o
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 

c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 

d
u
e
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

T
e
l:
 0

1
2
5
7
 

5
1
5
2
8
5
 

ja
n
e
.m

e
e
k
@

c
h
o

rl
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

M
o
n
d
a

y
 2

0
 

A
u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
0
7
 

 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

re
v
is

e
d
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

E
q

u
a
lit

y
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

4
 O

c
t 

2
0
0
7
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

  
 

R
e
v
is

e
d
 

E
q

u
a
lit

y
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 

to
 

b
e
 

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d
  

R
e
v
is

e
d
 

E
q

u
a
lit

y
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0

1
2
5
7
 

5
1
5
3
2
3
 l
e
s
le

y
-

a
n
n
.f

e
n
to

n
@

c
h
o

rl
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

M
o
n
d
a

y
. 

1
0
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 55



 D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 b
e
 

ta
k
e
n

 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 b
y
 

R
e
le

v
a
n

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 

H
o

ld
e
r 

E
a
rl

ie
s
t 

D
a
te

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 c
a
n

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
e
e
s
 

M
e
th

o
d

(s
) 

o
f 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
D

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
ta

k
e
r 

R
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 

to
 t

h
e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

b
y
 t

h
e
 

d
a
te

 s
ta

te
d

 

 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 -

 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 

4
 O

c
t 

2
0
0
7
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

  
 

D
ra

ft
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

to
 b

e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
  

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0

1
2
5
7
 

5
1
5
3
2
3
 l
e
s
le

y
-

a
n
n
.f

e
n
to

n
@

c
h
o

rl
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

M
o
n
d
a

y
, 

1
0
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

4
 O

c
t 

2
0
0
7
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

  
 

D
ra

ft
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

to
 b

e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
  

D
ra

ft
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0

1
2
5
7
 

5
1
5
3
2
3
 l
e
s
le

y
-

a
n
n
.f

e
n
to

n
@

c
h
o

rl
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

M
o
n
d
a

y
, 

1
0
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

P
a
y
 

a
n
d
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

1
5
 N

o
v
 2

0
0
7
 

T
ra

d
e
 

U
n
io

n
's

, 
S

ta
ff

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
S

ta
ff

 
F

o
ru

m
 

a
n
d
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

G
ro

u
p
  

  

D
ra

ft
 P

la
n
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d
 

a
n
d
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
fo

r 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
o
n
 

th
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 

D
ra

ft
 P

la
n
 

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
u
m

a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 T

e
l:
 

0
1
2
5
7
 5

1
5
1
 

lo
rr

a
in

e
.c

h
a
rl
e
s

w
o
rt

h
@

c
h
o
rl
e
y
.

g
o
v
.u

k
 

M
o
n
d
a

y
, 

2
2
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 56



 D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 b
e
 

ta
k
e
n

 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 b
y
 

R
e
le

v
a
n

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 

H
o

ld
e
r 

E
a
rl

ie
s
t 

D
a
te

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 c
a
n

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
e
e
s
 

M
e
th

o
d

(s
) 

o
f 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
D

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
ta

k
e
r 

R
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 

to
 t

h
e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

b
y
 t

h
e
 

d
a
te

 s
ta

te
d

 

 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

E
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

s
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
5
 N

o
v
 2

0
0
7
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

  
  

D
ra

ft
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o

d
s
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0

1
2
5
7
 

5
1
5
7
2
0
 

jo
h
n
.l
e
c
h
m

e
re

@
c
h
o
rl
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

M
o
n
d
a

y
 2

2
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

a
 

J
o
in

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n
d
 

L
C

C
 L

o
c
a
lit

y
 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 

6
 D

e
c
 2

0
0
7
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 

L
C

C
 

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

  
 

D
ra

ft
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

to
 b

e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
  

L
o
c
a
lit

y
 P

la
n
 

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0

1
2
5
7
 

5
1
5
3
2
3
 l
e
s
le

y
-

a
n
n
.f

e
n
to

n
@

c
h
o

rl
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

M
o
n
d
a

y
, 

1
0
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 57



 D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 b
e
 

ta
k
e
n

 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 b
y
 

R
e
le

v
a
n

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 

H
o

ld
e
r 

E
a
rl

ie
s
t 

D
a
te

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 c
a
n

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
e
e
s
 

M
e
th

o
d

(s
) 

o
f 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
D

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
ta

k
e
r 

R
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 

to
 t

h
e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

b
y
 t

h
e
 

d
a
te

 s
ta

te
d

 

 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

s
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

6
 D

e
c
 2

0
0
7
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

  
 

D
ra

ft
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ti
o
n
 

to
 

b
e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
  

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0

1
2
5
7
 

5
1
5
7
2
0
 

jo
h
n
.l
e
c
h
m

e
re

@
c
h
o
rl
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

M
o
n
d
a

y
, 

1
2
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 58



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Policy & Performance 
(Assistant Chief Executive) 

 
Introduced by the Executive 

Member for Policy and 
Performance 

Executive Cabinet 
6th September 

2007 

 

THE CHORLEY PARTNERSHIP – A PROGRESS REPORT 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To outline the improvements made to the Chorley Partnership (the Local Strategic 
Partnership for Chorley) and to keep Cabinet informed about the current work being co-
ordinated by the LSP, as well as future plans for the LSP. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. That the report be noted. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. This report outlines the progress made to date on strengthening the Chorley Partnership, 
the Local Strategic Partnership for Chorley. 

 

Since re-structuring in 2006, the progress to date includes: 

• 6 projects have been commissioned by the LSP, match funded by partners, to 
deliver joined-up multi agency projects in targeted areas  

• Full membership of the Board, consisting of 40 representatives from the public, 
private, voluntary, community and faith sectors 

• Re-freshing of the Community Strategy 

• Performance Management Framework developed 

• Constitution formalised 

• Chorley People quarterly newsletter developed 

• Chorley Partnership website developed 

 

The months ahead will be challenging: 

• Publication of the Community Strategy and Action Plan 

• IDeA Peer Review of the LSP 

• Embedding performance management throughout the LSP 

• External accreditation from GONW in the new year. 

In 2008, CPA will be replaced by CAA (Comprehensive Area Assessment) which will focus 
much more on the LSP and how well structured and managed it is to deliver multi-agency 
services in partnership with other organisations.  Therefore it is crucial we embed 
performance management into the LSP and ensure it is performing effectively against the 
targets outlined in the Action Plan. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 59



 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

4. To keep Members informed about the progress of and work being carried out by the 
Chorley Partnership, and to highlight the importance of the LSP to the new performance 
regime, Comprehensive Area Assessment, being implemented in 2008. 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

5. N/A 
 
 

 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
6. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

X Improved access to public services X 

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

X Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

X 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

X Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

X 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

The Chorley Partnership is the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) for Chorley.  LSPs are identified 
in the White Paper as being the main vehicle for developing a vision for transforming a place and 
for tackling hard cross-cutting social problems affecting an area, that often require a joined-up 
multi-agency approach. 
 
In 2006 the Partnership was re-structured in to make it fit for purpose in line with the increased 
emphasis placed on the LSP in the White Paper.  The LSP structure is outlined in Appendix A.  An 
overarching Board meets 4 times per year in various locations across the Borough.  The Board is 
chaired by Lincoln Shields, a representative of the Business Sector, and is made up of 40 other 
members from across the public, private, community, faith and voluntary sectors. 
 
The Executive sits below the Board and is the body responsible for the operational running of the 
Partnership.  It monitors performance of the Community Strategy, expenditure on LSP-funded 
projects and promotes joined-up partnership initiatives between all sectors.  The Partnership is to 
be recommended to consider the merger of the Executive with the Local Public Service Board. It is 
proposed that the new body will be chaired by the Leader of the Council, which means that its role 
in joining up public service delivery with our other public sector partners is even more paramount. 
 
Underneath the Executive sits the 6 thematic partnerships, some of which are statutory bodies 
such as the Community Safety Partnership and the Children & Young People’s Partnership (now to 
be known as the Children’s Trust) and others that are non-statutory bodies but cover important 
cross-cutting themes, such as the Stronger and More Involved Communities sub-group. 

 
The LSP’s key task is to oversee the production of Chorley’s Sustainable Community Strategy, 
which is delivered through an Action Plan owned and agreed by all Partners.   
 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 60



The Performance Advisor (Partnership) within the Policy & Performance Team (Claire Thompson) 
is responsible for the day-to-day co-ordination of the LSP and the performance management of its 
work streams. 
 
In 2008, Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) is being replaced by Comprehensive 
Area Assessment (CAA), which will focus much more on the LSP than before, and a crucial test 
will be how effective the LSP has been in joining up services and demonstrating service 
improvement and/or efficiencies generated by partnership working.  We also need to demonstrate 
a robust performance management process is in place.  Therefore it is critical that we strengthen 
the LSP this year. 
 

2007 – PROGRESS TO DATE 
 
7. Following on from the re-structure of the LSP in 2006, Chorley Borough Council allocated 

the LSP a budget of £85,000 to deliver cross-cutting, multi-agency projects to meet the 
objectives identified in the Community Strategy.  This was then matched twice over from 
other Partners, including the NHS, the Police and the private sector, to name but a few. 

 

These projects are: 

• Marketing Chorley (Economic Regeneration Partnership) 

• MATAC (Multi Agency Tasking and Co-ordinating) (Community Safety 
Partnership) 

• Vulnerable households (The Local Public Service Board) 

• Reducing Teenage Pregnancy in Chorley (The Children’s Trust) 

• Next Steps (Neighbourhood, Environment and Streetscene Partnership) 

• Promoting Volunteering in Chorley (Stronger and More Involved Communities sub-
group) 

 
 
These exciting projects are already demonstrating how effective the LSP can be in 
bringing together partners to work together on challenging issues, streamlining resources 
and ultimately making a bigger impact on people’s lives and service delivery in Chorley. 
 
The MATAC project has recently been praised by the Home Office for its innovative use of 
technology and sharing information between partners to more effectively combine 
resources and target hotspot areas of crime. 

 
8. The Partnership Board now has full membership.  40 people represent organisations from 

the public, private, voluntary, community and faith sectors.   The LSP is chaired by Lincoln 
Shields, a representative of the business community. 

 
9. The Community Strategy is currently being re-freshed, in time for the wider re-fresh of 

Ambition Lancashire, the county-wide community strategy and the new LAA in 2008.  Now 
re-branded by the Government as the ‘Sustainable Community strategy’, this key 
document provides the strategic Vision for the town over the next 20 years.  As ours was 
initially produced in 2005, it is scheduled to run until 2025, with re-freshes every 3 years. 

 

 By the end of September a final Sustainable Community Strategy for Chorley will be 
published.  Its 5 key priorities for Chorley are: 

 

• Ensuring that Chorley is the pulse of a thriving central Lancashire economy  

• Improving life chances for all 

• Developing local solutions to global climate change 

• Developing the character and feel of Chorley as a good place to live, work and play 

• Building Stronger Communities with improved access to public services 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 61



 
 Following on from this will be a re-freshed Action Plan that will enable us to monitor 

progress against the community strategy. 
 
10. A performance management framework has been designed for the Partnership.  This will 

utilise the Council’s Performance Plus information system, to allow progress against the 
community strategy targets to be monitored.  Regular reports will be presented to the 
Executive, twice-yearly to the Board and on an annual basis to the Council. 

 
11. A constitution for the Partnership has been formalised, stipulating Terms of Reference for 

each of the groups of the LSP, and setting out the role and responsibilities of the LSP. 
 
12. A quarterly newsletter called the Chorley People is being produced to communicate to 

Partners and other stakeholders the work of the LSP. 
 
13. The Chorley Partnership website www.chorleypartnership.co.uk, is being re-freshed on an 

ongoing basis.  Minutes, agendas and details of future meetings can now be downloaded, 
as well as other key documents.  Links to Partners’ and other relevant external websites, 
are planned for the future. 

 
14. In November, the Improvement and Development Agency (IDeA) will be conducting a 

Peer Review of the Chorley Partnership.  The Review Team will be on site on 6th and 7th 
November and will be conducting interviews with members of the LSP, as well as staff 
working for partner organisations, a focus group of residents and Elected Members of the 
Council.  The review will give us an indication of how well the LSP is progressing 
compared to other LSPs around the country and suggest areas for further improvement.  
Crucially. The Review will also help us to gauge how prepared we are for the new CAA 
arrangements in 2008. 

 
15. In areas with NRF funding, LSPs are given a formal traffic light ranking by GONW.  

However this is not a requirement for LSPs in non-NRF areas as the LSP is not 
responsible for commissioning NRF monies.  Following on from a successful IDeA Peer 
Review, we hope to have an informal visit from GONW that will rank us as an 
Amber/Green rated partnership.  

 
 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
16. This report has no implications in the following areas. 
 

Finance  Customer Services   
Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  
Legal    

 
 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Claire Thompson 5348 17
th
 August 2007  

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 62



  

 

  
U

p
d
a
te

d
 T

e
m

p
la

te
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
7
  

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 

 
 

 
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 

 
 

 
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

’s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
(C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t)

 

 

S
tr

o
n
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 M

o
re

 
In

v
o
lv

e
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

  

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
, 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

 
 

L
S
P
 E
x
e
c
u
t
iv
e
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
m

e
rg

e
r 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

u
b

li
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
B

o
a

rd
) 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

S
tr

u
c

tu
re

 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 63



Agenda Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Policy & Performance 
(Assistant Chief Executive) 

 
Introduced by the Executive 

Member for Corporate Policy and 
Performance 

Executive Cabinet 
6th September 

2007 

 

THE RE-FRESH OF THE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To bring to Executive Cabinet’s attention the re-fresh of Chorley’s Community Strategy 
and to seek feedback and comments on the revised priorities, objectives and key 
indicators. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. That comments be fed back to the LSP via the Performance Advisor (Partnership) by 13th 
September 2007, which is the date of the next LSP Board meeting. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3.      The Community Strategy (now re-branded by Government as the Sustainable Community 
Strategy) is being re-freshed to reflect the improvements that have been made to the LSP since 
2005.  It is also to co-incide with the re-fresh of the county-wide Ambition Lancashire later this year 
and the new LAA in 2008. 
 
The 5 key priorities for the re-freshed Sustainable Community Strategy are: 

 
• Ensuring that Chorley is the pulse of a thriving central Lancashire economy  

• Improving life chances for all 

• Developing local solutions to global climate change 

• Developing the character and feel of Chorley as a good place to live, work and play 

• Building Stronger Communities with improved access to services 

 
Please see the attached draft Sustainable Community Strategy for Chorley 2007 – 2025. 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

3. In order to ensure that Council Members’ views are able to be taken into account before the 
final version of the Strategy is agreed. 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

4. N/A 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 65



 

 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
5. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

X Improved access to public services X 

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

X Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

X 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

X Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

X 

 
 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
6. This report has no implications in the following areas. 
 

Finance  Customer Services   
Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  
Legal    

 
LESLEY-ANN FENTON 
DIRECTOR OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE (ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE) 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Claire Thompson 5348 23rd August 2007  

 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 66



 
1

 

V
.3

V
e

r 

V
e
rs

io
n

 3
.1

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 67



 
2

 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 
  

W
e
lc

o
m

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
-f

re
s
h
e
d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 F
ir
s
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
, 

th
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

e
ts

 t
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 o

f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

2
0
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 

T
h
is

 r
e
-f

re
s
h
e
d
 e

d
it
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
ile

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
n
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
5
. 
 

W
e
 f
e
lt
 i
t 
w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 s

to
c
k
 o

f 
h
o
w

 f
a
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

e
 a

s
 a

 b
o
ro

u
g

h
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
5
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

h
e
re

 w
e
 w

a
n
t 

to
 b

e
 i
n
 2

0
2
5
. 

 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

 l
o
t.
  

T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 j
o
b
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

in
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 t

h
a
n
 a

n
y
w

h
e
re

 e
ls

e
 i
n
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
. 

 S
im

ila
rl
y
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

is
 o

n
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

le
v
e
ls

 i
n
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
. 
 C

ri
m

e
 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

s
tr

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 “

c
le

a
n
e
s
t 

in
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

”.
 

 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

, 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
-f

re
s
h
e
d
 o

u
r 

lo
n
g

-t
e
rm

 V
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 

fi
v
e
 k

e
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

th
a
t 
w

ill
 g

u
id

e
 t
h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 w

o
rk

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
fe

w
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 

T
h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 a

n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g

 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e

y
. 

 T
o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
e
 c

a
n
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 l

o
n
g

-
te

rm
 p

ro
s
p
e
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 r

e
g

io
n
a
l 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 
 I

n
s
e
rt

 s
ig

n
a
tu

re
  

L
in

c
o

ln
 S

h
ie

ld
s
 

   S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 C
h

a
ir
 o

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

?

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 68



 
3

 

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 t

o
 C

h
o

rl
e

y
’s

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

 
T

h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
in

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 o

v
e
r 

1
5
0
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
p
ri
v
a
te

 a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

rs
 w

it
h
in

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 T
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 
o
f 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
2
0
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 S

in
c
e
 2

0
0
5
, 

a
 l
o
t 

o
f 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 o

c
c
u
rr

e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
-s

tr
u
c
tu

re
d
 w

it
h
 n

e
w

 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 M

o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f
a
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 T

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
g

e
n
d
a
 i
s
 c

h
a
n
g

in
g

 –
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
 t
o
p
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

lo
c
a
l 

a
re

a
s
, 
fo

r 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
. 
 A

 c
o
u
n
ty

-w
id

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 w

it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t,
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 k

e
y
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 h

a
s
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

 g
re

a
t 

d
e
a
l 
s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
5
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
o
u
r 

o
ri
g

in
a
l 
s
e
t 

o
f 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 W

it
h
 a

ll 
th

is
 i
n
 m

in
d
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
-f

re
s
h
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
7
 t
o
 2

0
2
5
 a

n
d
 t
o
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
5
 i
n
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 n

o
w

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t
h
e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
W

h
it
e
 P

a
p
e
r’
s
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
re

a
ti
n
g

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

 T
h
is

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 w

h
o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 m

a
rk

e
t 
to

w
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

e
a
u
ti
fu

l 
v
ill

a
g

e
s
, 
c
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 a

n
d
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
. 

 I
t 

is
 e

n
d
o
rs

e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 w

id
e
ly

 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
 I
t 

w
ill

 
b
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
ty

-w
id

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 A

m
b
it
io

n
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
ty

-w
id

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
 I
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
ile

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
lis

te
n
in

g
 t

o
 t
h
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 

  
    

W
h

a
t 

th
is

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

e
a

n
s

 f
o

r 
C

h
o

rl
e

y
 

 � ���
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
if
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 

� ���
 

£
2
0
0
m

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d
 a

n
 e

x
tr

a
 6

5
0
0
 j
o
b
s
 

� ���
 

T
h
e
 s

a
fe

s
t 
b
o
ro

u
g

h
 i
n
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 

� ���
 

T
h
e
 c

le
a
n
e
s
t 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 i
n
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 

� ���
 

S
tr

o
n
g

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

� ���
 

M
o
re

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 69



 
4

 

A
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 C

h
o

rl
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 
T

h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
o
r 

L
S

P
 f

o
r 

s
h
o
rt

, 
fo

r 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 o
v
e
r 

1
0
0
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d

 
in

 s
o
m

e
 w

a
y
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 a
s
 m

a
n
y
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 v

o
ic

e
s
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

re
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 T
h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
ri
n
g

s
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

m
a
n
y
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 t
o
 t

ry
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 l

if
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
. 

  
In

 2
0
0
6

 t
h
e
re

 
w

a
s
 a

 r
e
v
a
m

p
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 n

e
w

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

 n
e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

 C
h

o
rl

e
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

  
 T

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 i
s
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

e
e
ts

 f
o
u
r 

ti
m

e
s
 a

 y
e
a
r 

in
 v

e
n
u
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 I
t 

is
 m

a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
o
v
e
r 

4
0
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
p
ri
v
a
te

, 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 f

a
it
h
 s

e
c
to

rs
. 

 T
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 a
c
ts

 a
s
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 
w

h
ic

h
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t

h
a
t 

k
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 L

S
P

. 
 I

t 
a
ls

o
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 L
S

P
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
  

 T
h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i

s
 m

a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
8
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
ir
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
s
. 

 T
h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 b

ri
n
g

s
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 k

e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
, 

e
n
a
b
lin

g
 t

h
e
m

  
to

 t
a
k
e
 o

n
 a

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

in
g

 r
o
le

. 
T

h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

rt
ic

u
la

te
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 

w
o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 T
h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

t 
a
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
–
 c

h
e
c
k
in

g
 t

h
a
t 
m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 

m
e
t.
 I
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 w
it
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 70



 
5

 

T
h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 m

a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
P

u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

o
a
rd

, 
w

h
ic

h
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

a
ll 

th
e
 m

a
jo

r 
p
u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
T

h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 B

o
a
rd

 w
a
s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 j
o
in

t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 N
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 L

P
S

B
 a

re
 o

n
e
 g

ro
u
p
, 
it
 i
s
 h

o
p
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
jo

in
t 

w
o
rk

in
g

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 L

P
S

B
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
ri
v
a
te

 
a
n
d
 V

C
F

S
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 o

c
c
u
r.

  
 

 J
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 m

e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 s

h
a
re

d
, 

c
re

a
ti
n
g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 d

ra
w

in
g
 o

n
 e

x
p
e
rt

 a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

w
h
e
re

 p
u
b
lic

 m
o
n
e
y
 i
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
, 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 m

o
n
e
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 t

o
 o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 s

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

s
  

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 6
 s

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
s
 (

k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
) 

th
a
t 

d
e
liv

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 o
n
 k

e
y
 t

h
e
m

e
s
: 

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
, 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

, 
S

tr
o
n
g

e
r 

a
n
d
 m

o
re

 I
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
, 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
, 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
s
 a

re
 t
a
s
k
e
d
 w

it
h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 h

o
w

 b
e
s
t 
to

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
E

a
c
h
 

g
ro

u
p
 b

ri
n
g

s
 w

it
h
 i
t 

a
 w

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

, 
p
ri
v
a
te

 a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 f

a
it
h
 s

e
c
to

rs
. 
E

v
e
ry

 s
u
b
g

ro
u
p
 b

ri
n
g

s
 

a
n
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
e
d
 p

e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
 s

o
lv

in
g

 t
a
b
le

. 
 T

h
e
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
s
 p

re
p
a
re

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
m

a
k
e
 a

 r
e
a
l 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 r
e
a
lly

 c
o
n
n
e
c
ts

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 6

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

o
n
 c

ro
s
s
-c

u
tt
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 M

a
tc

h
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 h
a
s
 m

e
a
n
t 
th

a
t 
to

ta
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 c
o
m

e
s
 t

o
 o

v
e
r 

£
3
3
0
,0

0
0
. 

 L
S

P
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 f
o

r 
2
0
0
7
 a

n
d

 b
e
y
o

n
d

 
 T

h
e
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 –

 t
h

e
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

T
h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
s
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 p

ro
je

c
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 j
o
in

t 
p
ro

je
c
t 
w

it
h
 S

o
u
th

 R
ib

b
le

 L
S

P
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 a

 m
u
lt
it
u
d
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

. 
 I
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 ‘
p
ro

b
le

m
’ 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

h
o
s
e
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

is
 i
m

p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o

n
 o

th
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

’s
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

ill
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 1
5
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 1

5
 i
n
 S

o
u
th

 R
ib

b
le

, 
a
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 t
o
 f

a
m

ily
 

n
e
e
d
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
  

   

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 71



 
6

 

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 –
 M

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 C
h

o
rl

e
y
  

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

ill
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
  
‘M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
’ 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a

s
 a

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 b

ri
n
g

 m
o
re

 q
u
a
lit

y
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 A

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
ro

c
h
u
re

 w
ill

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 w

a
n
ti
n
g

 t
o
 l
o
c
a
te

 t
o
 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 –
 t

h
e
 M

A
T

A
C

 p
ro

je
c
t 

T
h
e
 M

A
T

A
C

 (
M

u
lt
i 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 T

a
s
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n
g
) 

p
ro

je
c
t 
w

ill
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

ri
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 b

e
tt

e
r 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

p
o
lic

e
, 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 W

e
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 G
IS

 (
e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 m
a
p
) 

b
a
s
e
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h
a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
b
o
u
t 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

c
ri
m

e
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 c

a
n
 t
h
e
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 p

o
lic

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
to

 n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 c

ri
m

e
 ‘
h
o
ts

p
o
ts

’ 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
fu

tu
re

 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 
c
a
n
 b

e
 p

re
v
e
n
te

d
. 
  

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

’s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 –
 R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 T

e
e
n

a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a
n

c
y
 i

n
 C

h
o

rl
e
y
  

T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
v
e
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 T

e
e
n
a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 L

o
c
a
l 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 G

ra
n
t 
(L

IG
) 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 t

e
e
n
a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 

b
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 b
e
tt
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

, 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 S

tr
e
e
t 

S
c
e
n

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 –
 N

e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

ill
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 T

h
e
 

p
u
b
lic

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o

n
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 f
a
it
h
, 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 s
m

a
ll 

s
c
a
le

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 

ti
d
y
in

g
 u

p
 ‘
g

ro
t 

s
p
o
ts

’,
 a

 p
la

n
ti
n
g

 s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
e
n
c
h
e
s
, 
fl
o
ra

l 
d
is

p
la

y
s
, 

e
tc

. 
 S

tr
o

n
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 M

o
re

 I
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 –
 I
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

 i
n

 C
h

o
rl

e
y
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

 w
id

e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 f
a
it
h
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 

s
o
 t

h
a
t 

a
s
 m

a
n
y
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
n
 g

e
t 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
. 
 N

o
t 

o
n
ly

 d
o
e
s
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 h

e
lp

 g
ro

u
p
s
 

w
it
h
 l
it
tl
e
 c

a
s
h
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
w

o
rk

 b
u
t 
it
 k

e
e
p
s
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
 h

e
lp

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 p
a
id

 w
o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 72



 
7

 

 
 

 
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 

 
 

 
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

 E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

’s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
(C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t)

 

 

S
tr

o
n
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 M

o
re

 
In

v
o
lv

e
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

 

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
, 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

 
L

S
P

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

(I
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

P
u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

o
a
rd

) 

T
h

e
 C

h
o

rl
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

S
tr

u
c

tu
re

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 73



T
h

e
 C

h
o

rl
e

y
 V

is
io

n
 

   B
y
 2

0
2

5
, 

C
h

o
rl
e

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
e

a
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 o

n
 s

a
fe

, 
c
le

a
n
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 n
e

ig
h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 w

h
e

re
 e

v
e

ry
o

n
e
 h

a
s
 e

q
u

a
l 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

g
o

o
d
 j
o

b
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
e

n
t 
h

o
m

e
s
. 

 O
u

r 
c
o

n
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 m

a
rk

e
t 

to
w

n
 o

f 
C

h
o

rl
e

y
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
tr

iv
e

 t
o

 b
e

 t
h
e

 
p

la
c
e

 o
th

e
r 

to
w

n
s
 a

s
p

ir
e

 t
o

. 
    

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 74



 
9

 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 i

n
 2

0
0

7
  

 T
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 i

s
 a

 u
n
iq

u
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
a
l 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 a

n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 

T
h
e
 l

o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
, 

ju
s
t 

n
o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e
 G

re
a
te

r 
M

a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
c
o
n
u
rb

a
ti
o
n
, 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 i

ts
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
te

ly
 r

u
ra

l 
n
a
tu

re
 w

it
h
 o

v
e
r 

8
0
 s

q
u
a
re

 m
ile

s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

p
le

a
s
a
n
t 

a
n
d
 v

a
ri
e
d
 

c
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 i
n
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 m

a
k
e
s
 i
t 
a
n
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

. 
 T

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 i
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 a
ff

lu
e
n
t 

w
h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 r

e
g

io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

 A
t 

a
 c

o
u
n
ty

 l
e
v
e
l 
th

e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 l

e
a
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

 i
n
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
. 

O
f 

th
e
 s

ix
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 

fo
u
r 

h
a
v
e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

p
a
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 t

h
a
n
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 f

e
a
rs

 o
f 

c
ri
m

e
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 i
n
 f

a
c
t 

lo
w

 l
e

v
e
ls

 o
f 

c
ri
m

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

v
io

le
n
t 

c
ri
m

e
 h

a
s
 f

a
lle

n
, 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

s
 f

a
v
o
u
ra

b
ly

 w
it
h

 
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 
 O

th
e
r 

c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

 f
a
v
o
u
ra

b
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 h

a
s
 m

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 o
f 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 –

 a
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
; 

a
 h

ig
h
 s

k
ill

e
d
 

la
b
o
u
r 

fo
rc

e
; 

w
e
ll 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

; 
a
n
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 o

p
e
n
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

o
o
rs

te
p
 a

n
d
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 o

u
t-

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

re
a
s
. 
  

 U
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

is
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 l

o
w

. 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 c

la
im

in
g

 u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

re
la

te
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

, 
a
t 

1
.6

%
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
, 

is
 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 f

ig
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 o
f 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 o

f 
1
.9

%
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 w

e
s
t 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

2
.7

%
. 

 B
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
9
8
 a

n
d
 2

0
0
5
, 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 t

o
p
p
e
d
 t

h
e
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 t

a
b
le

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
jo

b
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
, 

h
a
v
in

g
 c

re
a
te

d
 2

3
.8

%
 m

o
re

 j
o
b
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
, 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 a

 c
o
u
n
ty

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

o
f 

6
.4

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 M

6
, 

M
6
1
 a

n
d
 M

6
5
 m

o
to

rw
a
y
s
, 

th
e
 W

e
s
t 

C
o
a
s
t 

a
n
d
 P

re
s
to

n
 t

o
 M

a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
ra

ilw
a

y
 l
in

e
s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 M

a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r,
 L

iv
e
rp

o
o
l 

a
n
d
 B

la
c
k
p
o
o
l 

a
ir
p
o
rt

s
, 

m
e
a
n
 t

h
a
t 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i

s
 w

e
ll 

p
o
s
it
io

n
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 r

e
g

io
n
a
lly

, 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 
a
n
d
 e

v
e
n
 i

n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
T

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

ls
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 
g

o
o
d
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
to

 
o
th

e
r 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g

 
to

w
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
it
ie

s
 
a
s
 
w

e
ll 

a
s
 
th

e
 
g
re

a
t 

o
u
td

o
o
rs

 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
th

e
 
L
a
k
e
 
D

is
tr

ic
t.

 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 
h
a
s
 
th

e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 r

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 d
ri
v
e
n
 b

y
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
e
rn

 W
a
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 ‘
N

o
rt

h
e
rn

 G
ro

w
th

 C
o
rr

id
o
r’
. 

 T
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 i
s
 c

e
n
tr

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 t

h
ri
v
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 
to

w
n
 o

f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i
s
 s

te
e
p
e
d
 i
n
 a

 r
ic

h
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
l 
h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 a

 b
u
s
y
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 
 T

h
e
 

to
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

p
e
ra

te
s
 i

n
 a

 v
e
ry

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 r

e
ta

ili
n
g

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

la
rg

e
r 

to
w

n
s
 l

o
c
a
te

d
 i

n
 c

lo
s
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
. 

P
re

s
to

n
, 

B
o
lt
o
n
, 

B
la

c
k
b
u
rn

, 
S

o
u
th

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 W

ig
a
n
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 a
 s

h
o
rt

 d
ri
v
e
, 

b
u
s
 o

r 
tr

a
in

 r
id

e
 f

ro
m

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
. 

T
h
e
 T

o
w

n
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 a

ls
o
 f

a
c
e
s
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 M

a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
u
t 

o
f 
to

w
n
 s

h
o
p
p
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 T

ra
ff

o
rd

 C
e
n
tr

e
. 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 75



 
1
0

 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

la
ti
v
e
 a

ff
lu

e
n
c
e
, 

g
o
o
d
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 m

a
jo

r 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
 f

o
r 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
p
p
in

g
 m

e
a
n
 t

h
a
t 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i
s
 

s
e
e
n
 a

s
 a

 g
o
o
d
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 l

iv
e
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

. 
 I

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

M
O

R
I 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
, 

7
6
%

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 t

h
in

k
 t

h
a
t 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i

s
 a

 g
o
o
d
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 l
iv

e
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f

a
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 T
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 i

s
 i

n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g

 m
o
re

 .
 T

h
e
 

to
ta

l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 i
s
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 t

o
 r

is
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 f

ro
m

 1
0
0
,4

4
9
 i
n
 2

0
0
1
 t

o
 a

b
o
u
t 

1
0
7
,7

0
0
 b

y
 2

0
1
0
 a

n
d
 1

1
5
,7

0
0
 b

y
 2

0
2
0
. 

D
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
is

 
ti
m

e
, 

th
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i

n
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g

e
d
 o

v
e
r 

5
5
, 

a
n
d
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i

n
 y

o
u
n
g

e
r 

a
g
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 3

0
 a

n
d
 4

0
. 

A
s
 

m
o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

e
 t

o
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
a
g

e
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

c
a
re

 a
n
d
 n

e
w

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 

 E
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 S
u
p
e
r 

O
u
tp

u
t 

A
re

a
s
 a

re
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
tt

o
m

 2
0
%

 f
o
r 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
 W

h
ils

t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 l
o

w
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 

o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
, 

w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 t
h
e
 c

a
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 l
iv

e
 t

h
e
re

. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

in
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 A
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 H

e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
fi
le

 2
0
0
7
, 
m

a
le

 l
if
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 

in
 C

h
o
rl
e

y
 i

s
 7

6
.3

 y
e
a
rs

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i

s
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
, 

w
h
e
re

a
s
 f

e
m

a
le

 l
if
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
, 

a
t 

8
0
.5

 y
e
a
rs

, 
m

e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
, 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 f

e
m

a
le

s
 l

iv
e
 s

h
o
rt

e
r 

liv
e
s
 t

h
a
n
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 

 S
im

ila
rl
y
, 

th
e
 b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n
k
in

g
 r

a
te

 a
t 

2
2
.3

%
, 

is
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
1
8
.2

%
, 

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 f

o
r 

w
o

m
e
n
. 

 L
iv

e
r 

d
is

e
a
s
e
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 i
s
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ro

b
le

m
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 W
h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 

p
la

c
e
s
 w

it
h
 s

im
ila

r 
c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 n

a
ti
o
n
w

id
e
 t

h
e
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 w

a
s
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n
 i

n
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
. 

  
L
ife

 e
x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

ls
o
 

d
ra

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

 d
if
fe

rs
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
h
o
rt

a
g

e
 o

f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 A
 r

a
p
id

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
s
 h

a
s
 o

c
c
u
rr

e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

2
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 I

n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
, 

th
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 w

a
s
 £

1
6
9
,1

8
4
, 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
£
1
5
3
,1

1
2
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
ty

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
£
1
4
5
,7

9
1
. 

 B
u
y
in

g
 

a
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
o
n
e
 e

a
rn

in
g

 a
 t

y
p
ic

a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
. 

 F
in

a
lly

, 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 f

a
c
e
s
 s

ti
ff

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g

 t
o
w

n
s
 a

n
d
 f

ro
m

 M
a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
w

h
e
n
 i
t 

c
o
m

e
s
 t

o
 j
o
b
s
. 

P
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 a

re
 t

e
n
d
in

g
 

to
 t
ra

v
e
l 
g
re

a
te

r 
d
is

ta
n
c
e
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

o
m

e
 5

5
%

 o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 t
ra

v
e
lli

n
g

 o
u
t 

o
f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

 

   
    

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 76



 
1
1

 

 
P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 F
U

T
U

R
E

 
 

  T
h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 r

e
-f

re
s
h
e
d
 i
ts

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 

th
is

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
fe

w
 y

e
a
rs

. 
  
K

e
y
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 t
h
a
t 

w
ill

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 h
o
w

 w
e
ll 

w
e
 a

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
 

•
 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

u
ls

e
 o

f 
a
 t
h
ri
v
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
  

•
 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 l
if
e
 c

h
a
n
c
e
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 g

lo
b
a
l 
c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
n
d
 f
e
e
l 
o
f 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a

s
 a

 g
o
o
d
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 p

la
y
 

•
 

B
u
ild

in
g

 S
tr

o
n
g

e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

  

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 77



 
1
2

 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 1
  

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
C

h
o

rl
e

y
 i

s
 t

h
e

 p
u

ls
e

 o
f 

a
 t

h
ri

v
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
L

a
n

c
a

s
h

ir
e

 e
c

o
n

o
m

y
 

 E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

y
s
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
ro

le
 i
n
 o

u
r 

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
. 

T
h
e
 E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
im

s
 t

o
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
 o

v
e
r 

£
2
0
0
m

 o
f 

n
e
w

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
v
e
r 

6
5
0
0
 n

e
w

 j
o
b
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

w
h
o
 l
iv

e
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

n
e
x
t 

1
0
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 

 S
U

C
C

E
S

S
 S

T
O

R
Y

: 
T

h
e
 R

e
v
o

lu
ti

o
n

  
 T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 R
e
g

io
n
a
l 
S

it
e
 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 a

re
a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
tr

a
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie

s
. 

 P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 n

o
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

la
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
a
 

o
f 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
q

u
a
lit

y
 t

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
m

a
jo

r 
in

w
a
rd

 i
n
v
e
s
to

rs
. 

H
e
lio

s
lo

u
g

h
’s

 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

in
 
th

e
 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
R

e
g

io
n
a
l 

S
it
e
 
h
a
s
 
b
ro

u
g
h
t 

a
d
d
e
d
 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
to

 
th

e
 
a
re

a
. 

 
A

s
 
a
 
d
ir
e
c
t 

re
s
u
lt
 
o
f 

th
e
ir
 

in
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 

th
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
R

e
g

io
n
a
l 

S
it
e
, 

H
e
lio

s
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

h
a
v
e
 

s
u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 
a
 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

1
5
 

a
c
re

s
 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 

p
a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
re

a
s
 o

n
 B

u
c
k
s
h
a
w

 V
ill

a
g

e
 a

n
d
 a

re
 s

p
e
c
u
la

ti
v
e
ly

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
in

g
 2

0
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
u
n
it
s
 t

o
ta

lli
n
g

 2
2
4
,0

0
0
 s

q
 f

t 
a
im

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 S

M
E

 m
a
rk

e
t,
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

 h
o
te

l,
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
r 

s
h
o
w

 r
o
o
m

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 f
la

g
 s

h
ip

 p
ro

je
c
t 
n
o
t 
o
n
ly

 f
o
r 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 b

u
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 R

e
g

io
n
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 
 I
t 

is
 i
llu

s
tr

a
ti
v
e
 o

f 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
e
rn

 W
a
y 

is
s
u
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

in
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 l
it
tl
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
fu

n
d
in

g
. 

W
e
 a

ls
o
 a

im
 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 R

e
g

io
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 S
it
e
, 
th

e
 l
o
z
e
n
g

e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

a
ro

u
n
d
 i
t 
ta

k
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 8

 M
6
1
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 a

 p
re

s
ti
g
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rk

. 
 W

e
 a

ls
o
 i
n
te

n
d
 t
o
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

u
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 b

y
 m

a
s
te

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 a
ro

u
n
d
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 9

 M
6
2
 a

n
d
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 2

9
 M

6
. 

A
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 R
e
g

io
n
a
l 

S
it
e
 i

s
 B

u
c
k
s
h
a
w

 V
ill

a
g

e
. 

 B
u
c
k
s
h
a
w

 V
ill

a
g

e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i

s
 a

ls
o
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

R
o
y
a
l 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 s

it
e
, 

c
o
v
e
rs

 a
n
 a

re
a
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

7
0
 h

e
c
ta

re
s
 a

n
d
 i

s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 u

rb
a
n
 v

ill
a
g

e
 c

o
n
s
is

ti
n
g

 o
f 

5
1
 h

e
c
ta

re
s
 -

 h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

–
 5

0
 

h
e
c
ta

re
s
 -

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 6

9
 h

e
c
ta

re
s
 -

 g
re

e
n
s
p
a
c
e
. 
 T

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 

  
 

•
 

2
,0

0
0
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
 

 
 

•
 

2
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
re

a
s
 

 
 

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
l,
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

 
 

•
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
c
e
n
tr

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
ta

il 
a
n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 
in

 a
 m

ix
e
d
 u

s
e
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
c
o
re

 

 
 

•
 

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

 
 

•
 

2
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 78



 
1
3

 

 
 

•
 

N
e
w

 r
a
ilw

a
y
 s

ta
ti
o
n
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ro
a
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
o
th

 w
it
h
in

 a
n
d
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t
h
e
 s

it
e
. 
 T

h
e
 S

1
0
6
 p

a
c
k
a
g

e
 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 £

2
5
 m

ill
io

n
. 

 
B

u
c
k
s
h
a
w

 V
ill

a
g

e
 w

a
s
 b

o
u
g

h
t 

b
y
 a

 R
e
d
ro

w
/B

a
rr

a
tt
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 i
n
 2

0
0
0
 a

n
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 t

h
e
y
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 

 W
h
ils

t 
re

c
e
n
t 

tr
e
n
d
s
 i

n
d
ic

a
te

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
tr

o
n
g

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l,
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 a

h
e
a
d
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 ‘

in
v
e
s
to

r 
re

a
d
y
’.
  

T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 a
 g

o
o
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 

o
ff

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rk

s
, 
a
n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
x
p
lo

it
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
v
o
lu

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 B

u
c
k
s
h
a
w

 V
ill

a
g

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

. 
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i

s
 w

e
ll 

k
n
o
w

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

fo
r 

it
s
 f

a
m

o
u
s
 m

a
rk

e
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

o
a
s
ts

 a
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 m

ix
 o

f 
tr

a
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
tr

e
e
ts

, 
m

a
rk

e
ts

, 
fi
n
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 l
ik

e
 M

a
rk

e
t 
W

a
lk

. 
  

 N
e
w

 m
u
lt
i-
m

ill
io

n
 p

o
u
n
d
 s

h
o
p
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 

M
a
rk

e
t 

W
a
lk

 a
n
d
 M

a
rk

e
t 

S
tr

e
e
t,
 a

lo
n
g

 w
it
h
 r

e
-i
n
v
ig

o
ra

te
d
 m

a
rk

e
ts

, 
a
re

 v
it
a
l 
to

 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
’s

 f
u
tu

re
, 

to
 c

re
a
te

 a
 c

o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 m

a
rk

e
t 

to
w

n
, 

w
h
e
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 c
a

n
 e

n
jo

y
 a

 w
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
s
to

re
s
 a

n
d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 r

iv
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g

 c
it
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 s

h
o
p
p
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t.
  

It
s
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

1
0
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

n
e
w

 r
e
ta

il 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
 b

ri
n
g

in
g

 t
h
o
u
s
a
n
d
s
 o

f 
n
e
w

 j
o
b
s
, 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 v

is
it
o
r 

le
v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 h

e
lp

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
 a

n
 “

1
8
 h

o
u
r 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
” 

w
it
h
 a

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n
g

e
 o

f 
le

is
u
re

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

S
 

 1
) 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

2
) 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

  
 

3
) 

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 o
f 
s
it
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

re
m

is
e
s
  
 

4
) 

A
 t

h
ri
v
in

g
 t
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
  
 

5
) 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
  

 
6
) 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

o
rl
d
  

 

  In
d

ic
a
to

r 
o

f 
S

u
c
c
e
s
s
 

B
a
s
e
li

n
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

- 
b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
jo

b
s
 c

re
a
te

d
/p

re
s
e
rv

e
d
 

2
2
6
 

1
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

5
3
 

5
3
 

 
S

q
 M

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 f
lo

o
rs

p
a
c
e
 

4
1
,9

4
9
 

1
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 79



 
1
4

 

c
re

a
te

d
/i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

T
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 v

is
it
o
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 r

a
n
g

e
 a

n
d
 

c
h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
s
h
o
p
s
 

4
9
.3

%
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 b

y
 1

0
%

 
 

V
a
c
a
n
t 
to

w
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 f

lo
o
rs

p
a
c
e
 

9
.7

%
 

7
%

 
 

%
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 

m
e
d
ia

n
 

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e
 

e
a
rn

in
g

s 
g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 

3
.2

%
 (

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
5
) 

2
.7

%
 

 

%
 
o
f 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 
p
e
o
p
le

 
(w

o
rk

in
g

 
a
g
e
) 

m
o
v
in

g
 

in
to

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

e
a
s
in

g
 t

o
 

c
la

im
 I

n
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

1
4
.1

 (
S

e
p
 2

0
0
6
) 

0
.2

%
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

 

      

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 80



 
1
5

 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 2
  

 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 l

if
e

 c
h

a
n

c
e

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll
  

  W
h
ils

t 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 a
ff

lu
e
n
t 

B
o
ro

u
g

h
, 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
h

e
a
lt

h
 i

n
e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s
 s

ti
ll 

e
x
is

t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
  

 

•
 

A
 c

h
ild

 b
o
rn

 i
n
 C

la
y
to

n
-l
e
- 

W
o
o
d
s
 N

o
rt

h
 c

o
u
ld

 e
x
p
e
c
t 

to
 l
iv

e
 7

.2
 y

e
a
rs

 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 t

h
a
t 

o
f 

a
 c

h
ild

 b
o
rn

 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

s
tl
e
y
 a

n
d
 B

u
c
k
s
h
a
w

 w
a
rd

. 
 

L
if
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 i
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 m

a
n
y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
fa

c
to

rs
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h
, 
h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
. 

 

•
 

A
lc

o
h
o
l 
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 a
n
d
 b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n
k
in

g
1
, 

a
re

 a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
  

•
 

M
o
n
th

s
 o

f 
lif

e
 l
o
s
t 
fr

o
m

 a
lc

o
h
o
l 
re

la
te

d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 i
n
 w

o
m

e
n
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 w

e
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
  

•
 

M
o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

s
 f
ro

m
 c

h
ro

n
ic

 l
iv

e
r 

d
is

e
a
s
e
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
. 
  

•
 

O
b
e
s
it
y
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 w
it
h
in

 C
h
o
rl
e

y
, 

a
s
 i
t 

is
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 

 O
b
e
s
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 m
o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 s

u
ff

e
r 

fr
o
m

 
h
e
a
rt

 a
tt
a
c
k
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
o
k
e
s
, 

h
ig

h
 b

lo
o
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

, 
d
ia

b
e
te

s
, 

a
rt

h
ri
ti
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 t

y
p
e
s
 o

f 
c
a
n
c
e
r.

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o

 a
re

 o
b
e
s
e
 

a
re

 m
o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 p

s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 d

is
o
rd

e
rs

. 
  

 T
e
e
n

a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a
n

c
y
 

 T
e
e
n
a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 i
s
 s

tr
o
n
g

ly
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

lly
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

. 
 

 T
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
te

e
n
a
g

e
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 i
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 f

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 p

re
s
e
n
t:
 

 

•
 

L
o
w

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

is
e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
 

•
 

R
is

k
y
 B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

- 
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
e
a
rl
y
 o

n
s
e
t 
o
f 

s
e
x
u
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 p

o
o
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
e
p
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
; 
 

•
 

F
a
m

ily
 o

r 
B

a
c
k
g

ro
u
n
d
 f

a
c
to

rs
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 l
o
w

 p
a
re

n
ta

l 
a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
liv

in
g

 i
n
 c

a
re

, 
b
e
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

a
u
g

h
te

r 
o
f 

a
 t

e
e
n
a
g

e
 m

o
th

e
r.

  
   
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 
1
 d

e
fi
n
e

d
 a

s
 a

d
u
lt
s
 w

h
o
 c

o
n

s
u
m

e
 d

o
u
b

le
 t

h
e
 d

a
ily

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
e
d
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
r 

m
o
re

 i
n
 a

 s
in

g
le

 d
ri

n
k
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 81



 
1
6

 

T
h
e
 
re

a
lit

ie
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
 
o
f 

b
e
c
o
m

in
g

 
a
 
te

e
n
a
g

e
 
m

o
th

e
r 

o
r 

fa
th

e
r 

a
re

 
s
ta

rk
, 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly

 
lim

it
in

g
 
a
 
y
o
u
n
g

 
w

o
m

a
n
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
r 

c
h
ild

’s
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 l
if
e
. 

  
T

h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
e
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

u
lt
u
re

 o
f 

te
e
n
a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 a

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
re

a
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 
in

 o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 T
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 T

e
e
n
a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 T

e
e
n
a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 ‘
h
o
ts

p
o
ts

’ 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

. 
  

 

•
 

In
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
ra

te
 o

f 
u
n
d
e
r-

1
8
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 r

is
e
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 1

9
9
8
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
4
1
.0

 (
p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 1

5
 –

 1
7
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
),

 t
o
  

4
5
.3

 i
n
 

2
0
0
5
. 
  

•
 

T
h
is

 
is

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 
h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 
th

e
 
2
0
0
5
 
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 
o
f 

4
1
.5

 
a
n
 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 
o
f 

1
4
.6

%
 
a
n
d
 
th

e
 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 o
f 

4
1
.3

. 

•
 

 W
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 b

ro
k
e
n
 d

o
w

n
 b

y
 w

a
rd

 l
e
v
e

l,
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
ti
c
e
a
b
le

 p
o
c
k
e
ts

 o
f 

te
e
n
a
g

e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

v
e
n

 m
o
re

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
. 

 T
h
e
 w

a
rd

s
 m

o
s
t 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 a

re
: 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 E

a
s
t;

 N
o

rt
h

 E
a
s
t;

 S
o

u
th

 E
a
s
t 

a
n

d
 S

o
u

th
 W

e
s
t,

 w
h
ic

h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
m

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6
5
.0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 1

5
 -

 1
7
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 f
e
m

a
le

s
. 

 
 T

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 T

e
e
n
a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i

n
 1

9
9
9
, 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 a

ll 
L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

b
y
 2

0
1
0
, 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

u
n
d
e
r-

1
8
 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 h

a
lf
 a

n
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

o
 6

0
%

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
te

e
n
a
g

e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g

 o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
ir
 r

is
k
 o

f 
lo

n
g
 

te
rm

 s
o
c
ia

l 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

  
 A

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

 p
o
p
u
la

r 
p
la

c
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
fa

c
to

rs
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
tr

e
n
d
 o

f 
ri
s
in

g
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
s
, 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
w

a
rd

 m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t

o
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 

m
e
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 s

o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

is
s
u
e
 f

o
r 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 g

ro
s
s
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 d

u
ri
n
g

 2
0
0
6
 w

a
s
 £

3
3
,0

0
0
, 

w
it
h
 

a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

h
re

e
-b

e
d
ro

o
m

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 i

n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 c

o
s
ti
n
g
 £

1
6
9
,1

8
4
. 

T
h

e
re

fo
re

, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 a

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 w

o
u

ld
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 
b

o
rr

o
w

 a
t 

a
 l

e
v
e
l 

o
f 

5
.1

 t
im

e
s
 t

h
e
ir

 s
a
la

ry
. 

 T
h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 D

e
m

a
n
d
 S

tu
d
y
 2

0
0
4
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

7
.8

%
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s 
fe

lt
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n
 u

n
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
  

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 82



 
1
7

 

T
h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t 
fo

r 
s
o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 a

lm
o
s
t 
d
o
u
b
le

d
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

y
e
a
rs

 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 6

,0
0
0
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

, 
e
x
a
c
e
rb

a
te

d
 

b
y
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
p
ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

h
o
m

e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
e
re

 m
a
n
y
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 o

b
ta

in
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
 O

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

S
 

 5
) 

T
a
rg

e
t 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g

e
n
c
y
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 p

o
c
k
e
ts

 o
f 

in
e
q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 8

 ‘
S

u
p
e
r 

O
u
tp

u
t 

A
re

a
s
’ 
in

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 

6
) 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 /
 E

n
g

la
n
d
 i
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

, 
lif

e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

ill
n
e
s
s
e
s
 

7
) 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
 t
e
e
n
a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

 

8
) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d
 t
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 o

th
e
r 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
. 

  
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
o

f 
S

u
c
c
e
s
s
 

B
a
s
e
li

n
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i

n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

S
u
p
e
r 

O
u
tp

u
t 

A
re

a
s
 

c
la

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 2

0
%

 m
o
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 

8
 

 
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 

in
e
q

u
a
lit

y
 

o
f 

lif
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

w
a
rd

s
 

7
.2

 y
e
a
rs

  
 

 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 

m
o
n
th

s
 

o
f 

lif
e
 

lo
s
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 -
 m

a
le

s
 

9
.1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
  

 
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 

m
o
n
th

s
 

o
f 

lif
e
 

lo
s
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 -
 f

e
m

a
le

s
 

6
.9

4
 m

o
n
th

s
  

 
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n
k
in

g
 

2
2
.2

8
 (

a
s
 a

t 
2
0
0
5
) 

 
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

 
4
5
.3

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 1

6
-1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
 

2
0
.5

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 1

6
-1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 b

y
 2

0
1
0
 

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
e
s
 b

u
ilt

 
1
0
 

9
0
 b

y
 2

0
0
8
/9

 ?
 

1
5
0
 b

y
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 ?

 
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 83



 
1
8

 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 3
  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 l
o

c
a

l 
s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

 t
o

 g
lo

b
a

l 
c
li

m
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 

 C
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
s
 h

a
p
p
e
n
in

g
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
le

a
r.

  
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 e

n
te

re
d
 a

n
 a

g
e
 o

f 
‘c

lim
a
te

 u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
’ 
a
n
d
 c

a
n
 n

o
w

 
e
x
p
e
c
t 

m
o
re

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r,

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 f

lo
o
d
in

g
, 

d
ro

u
g

h
ts

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
v
y
 s

to
rm

s
. 

 T
o
 s

ta
b
ili

s
e
 t

h
e
 a

tm
o
s
p
h
e
re

, 
g

lo
b
a
l 
s
c
ie

n
ti
s
ts

 t
e
ll 

u
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
 6

0
%

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i

n
 g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
 T

h
a
t 

is
 w

h
y
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 i

s
 n

o
w

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 f

a
c
in

g
 

s
o
c
ie

ty
. 

 I
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 t

a
c
k
le

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
, 
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o
n
, 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
s
e
c
to

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 l
o
ts

 w
e
 c

a
n
 d

o
 t

o
 t

a
c
k
le

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 l

o
c
a
lly

. 
 F

o
r 

a
 s

ta
rt

, 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 m

a
d
e
 h

u
g

e
 s

tr
id

e
s
 i

n
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
, 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 

 R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
: 

fr
o
m

 2
3
.7

2
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
3
/4

 t
o
 4

3
.9

6
%

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
0
6
/7

. 
 T

h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

w
a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 –

 m
a
k
in

g
 u

s
 o

n
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 t
o
p
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
! 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
 l
o
t 
o
f 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 i
n
 c

u
tt

in
g

 o
u
r 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 i
s
 r

a
n
k
e
d
 5

th
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
o
u
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 f
o
r 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

d
io

x
id

e
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 (

th
e
 g

a
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 w

e
 u

s
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
) 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
to

r 
to

 g
lo

b
a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g
. 
 T

h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 L

o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 a

n
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 c

a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
, 
m

a
n
a
g

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
s
u
p
p
lie

s
, 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 w

a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

n
e
w

a
b
le

 e
n
e
rg

y
 c

a
p
tu

re
. 
 I
t 

a
ls

o
 p

la
c
e
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 
a
ll 

n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
e
s
 b

u
ilt

 c
o
n
fo

rm
 t

o
 s

tr
ic

t 
e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 c

a
rb

o
n
 n

e
u
tr

a
l 

b
y
 2

0
1
6
. 

 H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 o

n
ly

 9
%

 o
f 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 t
o
ta

l 
C

O
2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r.

  
W

h
e
n
 w

e
 l

o
o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 f

o
r 

to
ta

l 
c
a
rb

o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l,
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 r

o
a
d
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
) 

fo
r 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
, 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 s

c
o
re

s
 4

th
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

in
 

C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

t 
1
0
.3

2
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 p

e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r.

 

 T
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

h
a
s
 s

e
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 b

y
 6

0
%

 b
y
 2

0
5
0
. 

 T
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
is

, 
e
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 –

 g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t,

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 –

 n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 a

c
t 

to
g

e
th

e
r.

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
a
n
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 o
u
r 

jo
in

t 
e
ff

o
rt

s
 i

n
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
. 

 I
n
 i

ts
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 r
o
le

, 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

o
m

it
ti
n
g
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 i
ts

 C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 b

y
 X

%
 b

y
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
, 
fo

r 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
. 

   

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 84



 
1
9

 

T
H

E
 C

L
IM

A
T

E
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 F

U
N

D
 

 
S

ta
rt

in
g

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
, 

th
e
 1

2
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 L

o
c
a
ls

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 n

e
w

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 f

u
n
d
 o

f 
£
7
5
0
,0

0
0
 o

v
e
r 

th
re

e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 o
n
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
. 
 

 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

o
u
g

h
t 
to

 h
e
lp

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 o

r 
h
e
lp

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 c

o
p
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
le

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

(a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
).

  
T

h
e
 f

u
n
d
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 l

e
v
e
r 

in
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 

fu
n
d
s
 f

ro
m

, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

o
r 

re
g

io
n
a
l 

g
ra

n
ts

; 
th

e
 g

ro
u
p
’s

 o
w

n
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 
o
r 

fr
o
m

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
o
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
. 

 
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 m
ig

h
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 

ra
is

in
g

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

o
rk

 a
t 

lo
c
a
l 

le
v
e
l 

o
f 

th
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 t

a
c
k
le

 c
lim

a
te

 
c
h
a
n
g

e
; 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 ‘

m
ic

ro
 r

e
n
e
w

a
b
le

’ 
e
n
e
rg

y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
, 

c
a
rb

o
n
 c

a
p
tu

re
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

re
e
 p

la
n
t,

 p
e
a
t 

b
o
g

 r
e
s
to

ra
ti
o
n
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

s
e
q

u
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 

m
e
th

o
d
s
; 
m

in
i 
w

in
d
 t

u
rb

in
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
la

r 
p
a
n
e
ls

 o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
; 
e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 
  

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

S
: 

 9
) 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
’s

 c
a
rb

o
n
 f
o
o
tp

ri
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
 

1
0
) 

A
d
o
p
t 

a
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 t

o
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 o
u
r 

jo
in

t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 g

lo
b
a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g

 

 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
o

f 
S

u
c
c
e
s
s
 

B
a
s
e
li

n
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
 

A
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 C

O
2
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

2
.8

7
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

 
 

A
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
’s

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
C

O
2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

1
0
.3

2
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

 
 

A
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 
w

a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 
w

a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
te

d
) 

in
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 

4
4
.4

7
%

 
5
0
%

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 

 

A
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

a
n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 C

O
2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

a
n
d
 a

g
re

e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
ir
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

fo
o
tp

ri
n
t 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 85



 
2
0

 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

re
d
u
c
e
 i
ts

 c
a
rb

o
n
 f
o
o
tp

ri
n
t 

 
 

 

P
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 

 
C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 2

0
0
8
 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 86



 
2
1

 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 4
  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

ra
c

te
r 

a
n

d
 f

e
e

l 
o

f 
C

h
o

rl
e

y
 a

s
 a

 g
o

o
d

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 p

la
y

 

 In
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
M

O
R

I 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
, 

7
6
%

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 t

h
in

k
 t
h
a
t 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i
s
 a

 g
o
o
d
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 
 

th
e
 3

 m
o
s
t 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
fa

c
to

rs
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
k
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 a

 g
o
o
d
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 a

re
: 

•
 

L
o
w

 l
e

v
e
ls

 o
f 

c
ri
m

e
 

•
 

C
le

a
n
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 

•
 

G
o
o
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 In
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
, 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 o

u
t-

p
e
rf

o
rm

s
 m

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 

 F
o
r 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
, 

6
0
%

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 i

s
 k

e
p
t 

fr
e
e
 o

f 
lit

te
r.

  
C

h
o
rl
e
y
’s

 s
tr

e
e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
e
m

e
d
 “

th
e
 c

le
a
n
e
s
t 

in
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
” 

b
y
 t

h
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

A
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

8
6
%

 o
f 

th
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

fe
lt
 s

a
fe

 d
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 d

a
y
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
0
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
3
. 
  

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
’s

 c
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 w

a
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 i

s
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

fa
c
to

r 
to

 h
o
w

 p
e
o
p
le

 f
e
e
l 

a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

s
 a

 p
la

c
e
 t

o
 l

iv
e
. 

 C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i

s
 a

ls
o

 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

in
 i

m
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

’s
 l

iv
e
s
 a

n
d
 i

n
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 –

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i

n
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

a
n
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 

h
e
a
lt
h
, 
re

d
u
c
e
 a

n
ti
 s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r,

 c
ri
m

e
, 
p
ro

v
id

e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 –
 t
h
e
 l
is

t 
is

 e
n
d
le

s
s
. 

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 h

a
s
 a

 l
o
t 

to
 o

ff
e
r 

it
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

o
u
ri
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
g

io
n
. 

 F
ro

m
 b

e
a
u
ti
fu

l 
c
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 Y

a
rr

o
w

 V
a
lle

y
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
 P

a
rk

 t
o
 

h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 s

it
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 E

liz
a
b
e
th

a
n
 A

s
tl
e
y
 H

a
ll,

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 h

a
s
 a

 w
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
tt
ra

c
ti
o
n
s
 s

e
rv

in
g

 t
h
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 v

is
it
o
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

re
g

io
n
. 

 E
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l,
 s

p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

v
e
n
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 M

id
s
u
m

m
e
r 

F
e
s
ti
v
a
l,
 P

la
y
 D

a
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 
G

a
m

e
s
, 
to

 n
a
m

e
 b

u
t 
a
 f

e
w

. 
 In

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
le

is
u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
, 

6
0
%

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
a
y
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 

g
o
o
d
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
p
o
rt

s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 3

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

le
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 

2
 p

u
b
lic

 s
w

im
m

in
g

 p
o
o
ls

, 
2
 p

ri
v
a
te

 l
e
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 w

it
h
 

s
w

im
m

in
g

 p
o
o
ls

 (
N

e
x
t 

G
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 P

a
rk

 H
a
ll)

 a
n
d
 n

u
m

e
ro

u
s
 g

y
m

s
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

G
o
lf
 C

o
u
rs

e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
 1

8
 

h
o
le

 m
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 

o
w

n
e
d
 c

o
u
rs

e
 a

t 
D

u
x
b
u
ry

, 
s
o
u
th

 o
f 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 t

o
w

n
. 

 L
ik

e
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 l

e
is

u
re

 c
a
n
 b

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i

n
 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

m
o
n
g

s
t 

th
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 g

e
tt

in
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

 I
n
d
e
e
d
, 

th
e
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
v
e
a

le
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 

p
ro

b
le

m
a
ti
c
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
a
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 a

re
 p

a
re

n
ts

 n
o
t 

ta
k
in

g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n
 (

6
1
%

 s
a
w

 t
h
is

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
) 

a
n
d
 t

e
e
n
a
g

e
rs

 o
n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 w
it
h
 n

o
th

in
g

 t
o
 d

o
 (

6
1
%

 a
ls

o
 s

a
w

 t
h
is

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
).

  
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 m
a
n
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
im

 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

m
o
s
t 

n
o
ta

b
ly

 t
h
e
 G

e
t 

U
p
 a

n
d
 G

o
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
, 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 87



 
2
2

 

w
h

ic
h
 i

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
, 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
p
a
ri
s
h
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

, 
s
p
o
rt

s
 c

lu
b
s
 a

n
d
 a

rt
s 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 

 S
U

C
C

E
S

S
 S

T
O

R
Y

: 
G

E
T

 U
P

 A
N

D
 G

O
 

 T
h
e
 G

e
t 

u
p
 a

n
d
 G

o
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 a

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g

 a
 w

id
e
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

s
p
o
rt

s
, 

a
rt

s
 a

n
d
 m

u
s
ic

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 O
ri
g

in
a
lly

 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i

n
 2

0
0
3
, 

G
e
t 

U
p
 a

n
d
 G

o
! 

is
 n

o
w

 a
 y

e
a
r-

ro
u
n
d
 S

c
h
e
m

e
, 

o
ff
e
ri
n
g

 4
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

la
c
e
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

t 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 i
n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 t

a
rg

e
t 
a
re

a
s
. 

 F
ro

m
 t

h
e
 o

u
ts

e
t,
 t

h
e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

n
 o

ff
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
lib

e
ra

te
ly

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g

in
g

 a
n
d
 i

m
a
g

in
a
ti
v
e
, 

to
 g

ra
b
 t

h
e
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

 • 
S

p
o
rt

s
 -

 m
u
lt
i 
s
k
ill

s
, 
g

ym
 c

lu
b
, 
fo

o
tb

a
ll,

 c
h
e
e
rl
e
a
d
in

g
, 
b
a
s
k
e
t 

b
a
ll 

• 
A

rt
 a

n
d
 c

ra
ft

s
 –

 p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
y
, 

a
rt

, 
g
ra

ff
it
i 
a
rt

, 
d
ra

m
a
 

• 
O

u
td

o
o
r 

a
d
v
e
n
tu

re
 –

 r
iv

e
r 

s
tu

d
ie

s
, 
a
rc

h
e
ry

, 
fi
s
h
in

g
, 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 t

a
s
k
s
 

• 
M

u
s
ic

 –
 D

J
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
, 
g

u
it
a
r 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 

 G
e
t 
U

p
 a

n
d
 G

o
! 

is
 s

tr
o
n
g
ly

 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 t

a
rg

e
t 
a
re

a
s
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
d
iv

e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

. 
 I

n
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
, 

5
4
%

 o
f 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 w
e
re

 f
ro

m
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

a
rg

e
t 

a
re

a
s
. 

 T
h
e
 G

e
t 

U
p
 a

n
d
 G

o
! 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 n

o
t 
ju

s
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 –

 i
t 
is

 a
 b

a
la

n
c
in

g
 a

c
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 d

ir
e
c
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
d
ir
e
c
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
rk

s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 i
ts

 “
C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
” 

w
h
o
 w

e
re

 c
re

a
te

d
 i
n
 p

a
ri
s
h
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t
o
 s

e
t 

u
p
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
. 
T

h
e
y
 a

re
 g

iv
e
n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 l
o
tt
e
ry

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 s

o
 e

v
e
n
 m

o
re

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

e
t 

u
p
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 
p
e
o
p
le

. 

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
h

e
s
io

n
 

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i
s
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 a

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 e

th
n
ic

it
y
, 

w
it
h
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 (
2
.9

%
).

  
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

 1
.1

%
 i
n
 

1
9
9
1
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 W

h
it
e
 I

ri
s
h
, 

In
d
ia

n
, 

P
a
k
is

ta
n
i,
 B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b
b
e
a
n
 a

n
d
 C

h
in

e
s
e
. 

 A
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

P
o
lis

h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

ls
o
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 88



 
2
3

 

n
o
w

 e
x
is

ts
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 I
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

M
O

R
I 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

’ 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
, 

6
3
%

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
e
e
l 

th
a
t 

th
e
ir
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
re

a
 i

s
 a

 p
la

c
e
 w

h
e
re

 
p
e
o
p
le

 g
e
t 

o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g

e
th

e
r.

 
 In

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
fa

it
h
, 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 h

a
s
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

fa
it
h
s
 a

re
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
. 

 T
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 h

a
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
e
 f

a
it
h
 f

o
ru

m
s 

th
a
t 

p
ro

m
o
te

 f
a
it
h
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 C

h
u
rc

h
e
s
 T

o
g

e
th

e
r,

 t
h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 M

u
lt
i 

F
a
it
h
 F

o
ru

m
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 E

th
n
ic

 M
in

o
ri
ty

 C
o
n

s
u
lt
a
ti
v
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 

T
h
e
 F

a
it
h
 s

e
c
to

r 
is

 a
ls

o
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 S

tr
o
n
g

e
r 

a
n
d
 M

o
re

 I
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

h
e
m

a
ti
c
 g

ro
u
p
. 

 T
h
e
 L

S
P

 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
h
e
s
io

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n

 c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 S

tr
o
n
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 M

o
re

 I
n
v
o
lv

e
d

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
h
e
s
iv

e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

O
n
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 

to
 b

ri
n
g

 a
b
o
u
t 

s
h
a
re

d
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
o
le

ra
n
c
e
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

c
u
lt
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 b

e
lie

fs
. 

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

S
: 

 1
1
) 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 t

o
 b

e
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

s
t 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 i
n
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 

1
2
) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
re

s
id

e
n
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 a

s
 a

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 

1
3
) 

A
 c

o
h
e
s
iv

e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 

w
h
e

re
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

e
g

a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 l
iv

e
, 

a
g

e
, 
re

lig
io

n
 o

r 
e
th

n
ic

it
y
  

1
4
) 

R
a
is

e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

c
u
lt
u
re

 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
  

  In
d

ic
a
to

r 
o

f 
S

u
c
c
e
s
s
 

B
a
s
e
li

n
e
 (

a
s
 a

t2
0
0
7
) 

T
a
rg

e
t 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 %

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
: 

 M
u
s
e
u
m

s
 

   2
5
%
 

   5
3
%

 b
y
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

 
S

p
o
rt

s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

6
0
%
 

6
5
%

 b
y
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

 

T
h
e
a
tr

e
s
 

2
2
%
 

5
5
%

 b
y
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

 

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 

7
5
%
 

8
0
%

 b
y
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 c

ri
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

 
 

 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a

s
 a

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 

7
6
%

 
8
6
%

 b
y
 2

0
0
8
/9

 
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 %

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 f

e
e
l 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 89



 
2
4

 

th
a
t 
th

e
 u

rb
a
n
 a

n
d
 r

u
ra

l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

  
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
tr

e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 
7
%

 
4
.7

%
 b

y
 2

0
0
8
/9

 
  

 
        

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 90



 
2
5

 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 5
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 s
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 w
it

h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
is

 a
 k

e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 

 

•
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 s

h
o

w
s
 u

s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
ir
e
c
t 

lin
k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
is

 a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 o

f 
o
u
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
  

•
 

S
tr

e
a
m

lin
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

w
h
e
re

 p
u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
iz

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
a
re

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
re

 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 g
o
o
d
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
. 

  
 T

h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
e
lp

s
 t

o
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g

e
n
c
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 (

lik
e
 t

h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 P

C
T

, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

) 
to

 w
o
rk

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

m
o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
, 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 r

ig
h
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
p
e
o
p
le

. 
 

In
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
6
 M

O
R

I 
s
u
rv

e
y
, 

8
7
%

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 

it
 w

a
s
 e

a
s
y
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

 G
P

’s
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a

re
a
. 
  

8
6
%

 s
a
id

 t
h
e
y
 f

o
u
n
d
 i
t 

e
a
s
y
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 p

h
a
rm

a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 7

5
%

 s
a
id

 i
t 
w

a
s
 e

a
s
y
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
  

T
h
is

 v
a
ri
e
s
 f
ro

m
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 p

la
c
e
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
5
 w

a
rd

s
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t,
 E

a
s
t,
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t,
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 

a
n
d
 

S
o
u
th

 W
e
s
t)

 8
4
%

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
a
id

 t
h
e
y
 f

o
u
n
d
 i
t 
h
a
rd

e
r 

to
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

 G
P

 s
u
rg

e
ry

, 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 9

1
%

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 s

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 w

e
s
t 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 w

h
o
 s

a
id

 a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

 G
P

’s
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 w
a
s
 e

a
s
ie

r 
to

 d
o
. 

 

W
ith

o
u
t 
a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 m
a
n
y
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
a
n
 e

a
s
ily

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 s

o
c
ia

lly
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
. 

 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 N

o
W

c
a
rd

 
e
n
ti
tl
e
s
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
6
0
 t
o
 t
ra

v
e
l 
a
n
y
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 f

o
r 

fr
e
e
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 f
o
r 

a
 5

0
p
 f

la
t-

fa
re

 w
it
h
in

 
c
e
rt

a
in

 t
im

e
s
. 
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

in
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
a
c
k
le

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

in
 t

h
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 

 E
n
g

a
g

in
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

n
 a

re
a
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 

a
ft

e
r 

o
n
ly

 2
7
%

 o
f 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 M

O
R

I 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 w

e
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
. 

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 

th
is

 b
y
 s

e
tt

in
g

 u
p
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

o
ru

m
s
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

. 
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 c
a
n
 n

o
w

 s
p
e
a
k
 a

t 
fu

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
il,

 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 c

a
b
in

e
t 

a
n
d
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 o

w
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

lo
n
e
 o

ff
e
r 

a
 g

re
a
t 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 a

s
s
e
t 

w
it
h
 o

v
e
r 

6
,0

0
0
 h

o
u
rs

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 u

s
a
g

e
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
. 

 A
d
d
e
d
 

to
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 v

ill
a
g

e
 a

n
d
 c

h
u
rc

h
 h

a
lls

, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

v
e
n
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 w
id

e
ly

 u
s
e
d
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 f

a
it
h
 s

e
c
to

r 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 91



 
2
6

 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 

 I
n
 2

0
0
7
 T

a
tt
o
n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i

n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 E

a
s
t 

w
ill

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 i

n
to

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 -

 a
n
o
th

e
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

th
e
 s

tr
o
n
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 t

h
a
t 

e
x
is

t 
w

it
h
in

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 T
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
g

e
tt
in

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a

 v
it
a
l 
c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

to
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
s
p
e
ro

u
s
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 T
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 S

tr
o
n
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 M

o
re

 I
n
v
o

lv
e
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

re
g

e
n
e
ra

te
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

 a
n
d
 t

a
c
k
le

 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
, 

in
 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

it
h
 
lo

c
a
l 

p
u
b
lic

 
b
o
d
ie

s
. 

 
T

h
e
 
S

tr
o
n
g

e
r 

a
n
d
 
M

o
re

 
In

v
o
lv

e
d
 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 
G

ro
u
p
 
is

 
s
tr

iv
in

g
 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 a

re
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 

 O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
: 

 1
5
) 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
 h

ig
h
ly

 p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 s
e
rv

in
g

 a
ll 

c
it
iz

e
n
s
 o

f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 

1
6
) 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 t
ra

v
e
l 
to

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
6
) 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
  

1
7
) 

T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 g

e
t 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 

 In
d

ic
a
to

r 
o

f 
S

u
c
c
e
s
s
 

B
a
s
e
li

n
e
 a

s
 a

t 
2
0
0
6
/7

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
 

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 t

h
in

k
 t
h
a
t 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
3
 y

e
a
rs

 p
u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
h
a
s
 g

o
t 
b
e
tt
e
r 

o
r 

s
ta

y
e
d
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 

7
4
%

  
7
8
%

 b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

fe
e
lin

g
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 

m
a
k
in

g
 

2
8
%

  
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 i
n
 

C
h
o
rl
e
y

2
 

6
2
 %

  
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

v
e
ra

ll3
 

7
8
%

  
8
1
%

 b
y
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

 
 

    
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 
2
 D

e
fi
n
e
d

 a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

u
n
p
a
id

 o
r 

v
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 

3
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
a
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 B
V

P
I 
s
u
rv

e
y
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 G

P
s
, 
L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
, 

p
o

lic
e
 s

ta
ti
o

n
, 
e
tc

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 92



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Development and 
Regeneration 

(Introduced by the Executive 
Member for Economic 

Development and Regeneration) 

Local Development Framework and 
Community Strategy Working Group 

 

Executive Cabinet 

30 August 07 

 

6 September 07 

 

CHORLEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK – 

SUSTAINABLE RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

DOCUMENT SUBMISSION 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To present for endorsement/approval the Development Plan Document for Submission to 
Government. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) TO COUNCIL 

2. To endorse/approve the Development Plan Document for Submission to Government 
subject to minor textual and presentational amendments being delegated to the Director of 
Development and Regeneration. 

 
3. To delegate to the Director of Development and Regeneration powers to approve minor 

amendments to the Development Plan Document during the examination stage. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

4. Submission is the third stage of preparing a Development Plan Document and is marked by 
a further period of consultation. The document now presented for approval takes account of 
earlier representation responses. The policy content of the document has been refined to 
better achieve more sustainable construction and enable renewable energy generation 
across Chorley. The Borough is well placed to contribute to reducing the impact of climate 
change. However ultimately the outcome of the document’s preparation will be decided by 
an Inspector who’s recommendations will be binding on the Council. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

5. The Submission document needs Executive Cabinet (and Full Council) approval to comply 
with the Development Plan Regulations. This approval and delegated authority to make 
amendments will enable progress on this Corporate Strategy Key Project to keep to the 
published timetable. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

6. Alternative policy options have been considered at the previous preparation stage. The only 
other alternative open to the Council is to not proceed with the document however the need 
to help tackle climate change and to fulfil the potential of the Borough to do this, justify 
proceeding. 

 

 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 93



 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
7. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

 Improved access to public services  

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

 Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

X 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

X Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
8. The Submission stage is the third step in preparing a Development Plan Document. Three 

consultation opportunities were given at the previous Preferred Options stage and the 
responses received were reported to the Local Development Framework and Community 
Strategy Working Group at its meeting on 14 June 2007. The Preferred Options document 
published in March 2007 included alternative options as well as the favoured ones. 
Overall the representations received generally supported the preferred approaches set out 
and there was considerable backing for the Council’s commitment to the sustainable use 
of resources. The Submission document now presented for approval takes account of the 
comments made. 

 
9. The next step is to submit the document to government in a form that the Council wants to 

adopt as the finalised version. The process is that when the document is submitted a 
further six week consultation process starts. During this period formal representations can 
be made and objectors have a right to appear at a public hearing before an independent 
Inspector. However the Inspector will examine the whole document (irrespective of which 
parts are objected to) and will also consider how the document has been prepared using 
the tests of soundness – see Appendix 2 of the attached document. 

 
10. The Inspector has the power to find the document ‘unsound’ and force the Council to redo 

it. Alternatively he/she can impose minor changes that the Council will be duty bound to 
include in the finalised adopted version. If no objectors wish to attend a public hearing the 
examination process will be carried out through an exchange of written representations. 
The attached document includes the envisaged timescale for completing the preparation 
process. 

 
11. In response to representations and/or any queries raised by the Inspector it may be 

appropriate for the Council to propose minor amendments to the Development Plan 
Document at short notice during the examination process. To enable these changes to be 
put forward quickly Officer delegated decisions are likely to be required although 
Executive Member consultation would be carried out. 

 
 
CONTENT OF SUBMISSION DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT 
 
12. The overall scope of the document (annexed to this report) remains similar to before: 

• To ensure most types of new development are more sustainable in terms of 
energy use and capture, sourcing of construction materials as well as water use 
and waste recycling through the incorporation of various building design features  - 
Policy SR1 

• To enable where appropriate, stand-alone renewable energy schemes to be built – 
Policy SR2 

 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 94



13. The overall aim is to contribute to tackling climate change and reducing other adverse 
environmental impacts. Policy SR1 is proposed to apply to developments of 5 or more 
dwellings or non-residential units of 500 or more square metres floorspace. This is a 
compromise approach between other options previously consulted on which included 
applying the provisions to all developments irrespective of size and, at the other extreme, 
applying the provisions to schemes of more than 10 dwellings/over 1000 square metres 
floorspace. 

 
14. Policy SR2, relating to stand-alone renewable energy schemes, is based on the preferred 

option previously consulted in that it seeks to ensure there is no unacceptable impact on 
landscape character and visual appearance. 

 
15. To try to ensure that the policy objectives are met each policy is backed by a series of 

implementation targets with the aim that these will be progressively increased over time. 
The approach the Council is taking is in line with national and regional policies and advice 
but is ahead in terms of the implementation timetable. Full account has also been taken of 
Chorley’s and Lancashire’s Community Strategies.  

 
16. Clearly the Borough needs to make a contribution to solving the global problem of climate 

change and the local research shows the area is well placed to do this, particularly in 
terms of capturing renewable energy. It will be beneficial for residents and businesses to 
be at the forefront of implementing these advanced building techniques as it will reduce 
building running costs, encourage innovation and develop construction skills for wide 
scale application. 

 

CONCLUSION 
 
17. It has taken longer than originally expected to get to the Submission stage because of the 

problems, that many authorities have also had, in fully appreciating the particular 
preparation requirements of the new development plan system. However, although every 
effort has now been made to comply with the procedures and policy presentation the 
Council will ultimately be in the hands of the examining Inspector.  

 
18. Doing a topic base document like this, ahead of an overarching Core Strategy document 

(at an earlier stage of joint working preparation with Preston and South Ribble Councils), 
is now frowned upon by the Planning Inspectorate. There is therefore a risk the work will 
be abortive and hence wasteful of resources as well as harmful to the reputation of the 
Council. Nevertheless some authorities have successfully taken the route proposed and 
the justification for pursuing this approach in Chorley is considered strong and backed by 
the Government Office for the North West. 

 
IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
19. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments 

are included: 
 

Finance X Customer Services   
Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  
Legal X   

 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 95



COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
20. There are no immediate financial implications associated with this report.  However should 

the document need to be amended significantly then further costs may be incurred.  
However, funds have been set aside with regards to the Local Development Framework 
process and such costs would need to be contained within this sum.  The targets 
contained in the report for improvements dealing with climate change may require the 
Council to commit further resources.  An action plan needs to be created as to how the 
targets will be achieved.  Once complete I will report back to Members regarding the 
financial implications.  Such costs are likely to be mainly capital in nature and will require 
the Council to consider any resource requirements along with other priorities during the 
creation of the updated financial strategy and future capital programmes.   

 
 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF CUSTOMER, DEMOCRATIC AND LEGAL SERVICES 

.  

21. The decision of the Cabinet with regards to the contents of the Development Plan will 
have effect as a recommendation to full Council. This document forms part of the 
Council's policy framework and, as such, full Council must give its approval before it is 
submitted to the Secretary of State 

 
 
JANE E MEEK 
DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Louise Nurser/Julian Jackson 5281/5280 14 August 07 
T/SR SUMISSION DPD MEMBER 

REPOORT 

 

 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 96



Chorley into 2016: 
Sustainable Resources 

Submission Development 
Plan Document 

October 2007 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 97



Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Jane E Meek BSc (Hons) DipTP MRTPI 

Director of Development and Regeneration 

Tel: (01257) 515741/515281/515282/515295 

Fax: (01257) 515478 

E-mail: planning.policy@chorley.gov.uk 

www.chorley.gov.uk/planning 

5281

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 98



How to make Comments and Contents 

2

How to Make Comments 

This document has been prepared for consultation and community involvement.  Comments can be made 
in any of the following ways: 

By post:  Planning Policy Section 
   Chorley Borough Council 
   Council Offices 
   Union Street 
   Chorley    PR7 1AL 

By fax:    01257 515478 
By e-mail: planning.policy@chorley.gov.uk 
On-line:  www.chorley.gov.uk/planning

For comments to be considered they must be received by the Planning Policy Team by no later than 5pm  
*** *** 2007.  Respondents are asked to use the representations form a copy of which is appended to the 
back of this document. 

Representations will be analysed by the local authority and the main issues arising will be sent to the 
Secretary of State along with copies of the representations made.  It may be possible for minor amend-
ments to wording to be made during the subsequent Examination stage.  However, no substantive 
change will be possible. 

Contents Page No

1. About this document 3  
2. Background 5
3. National Context 6 
4. Strategic Context 7 
5. Issues and Evidence Specific to Chorley 10 
6. Spatial Vision 12 
7. The Development Plan Policies 13  

Appendix 1 - Sustainability Appraisal Testing 22  
Appendix 2 - Tests of Soundness 31 
Appendix 3 - Relevant Strategic Policies 32 
Appendix 4 - Chorley’s Community Strategy Action Plan Extracts 33 
Appendix 5 - Glossary 34 
Representations Form 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 99



1. About this document 

3

1. This document aims through the control of the 
grant of planning permissions to enable the 
inclusion of sustainable methods of 
construction within residential, commercial and 
other developments that will reduce carbon 
emissions; manage water supplies; source 
construction materials; encourage the 
recycling of waste and promote renewable 
energy capture. The document also covers 
stand-alone renewable energy capture 
schemes.

2. This is the first policy document within 
Chorley’s new Local Development Framework 
(the new style local development plan). It 
relates to one specific topic and will, as other 
Development Plan Documents are produced, 
result in a folder of planning policies relating to 
spatial development in the Borough. The 
document and the evidence based used to 
prepare it will influence the forthcoming Core 
Strategy of the Local Development 
Framework. The implementation of the 
document is also supported by a Sustainable 
Resources Supplementary Planning 
Document. This was issued in draft form in 
March 2006 and will be finalised following the 
adoption of this Development Plan Document.

3. The specific policies set out in this Submission  
stage document can be traced back to initial 
consultation work on the Issues and Options 
facing Chorley Borough. This took place in the 
autumn of 2004. The main findings were:

80% of respondents supported the 
encouragement of “small scale 
renewable energy schemes on new and 
existing developments”. 
75% of those who expressed an opinion 
supported the production of policies, 
“which are positive about renewable 
energy schemes (including preferred 

locations) but which also provide 
protection from negative impacts upon 
the local environment, landscape and 
homes”.
In relation to recycling, 78% of those who 
expressed a positive opinion supported 
the requirement for “employment and 
housing developments to make provision 
for the storage of wheelie bins and other 
recycling bins/containers”.
75% of those who expressed an opinion 
supported the production of policies, 
“which are positive about renewable 
energy schemes (including preferred 
locations) but which also provide 
protection from negative impacts upon 
the local environment, landscape and 
homes.”

4. Building on the results of this work a Preferred 
Options document has been consulted upon. 
The most recent Preferred Options 
consultation started in March 2007. This 
consultation set out a number of options and 
made clear that it was possible to bring 
forward options that had not previously been 
considered by the Council. Previous 
consultation took place on the Preferred 
Options Development Plan (March 2006 and 
June 2006). The representations made at the 
Preferred Options stage generally supported 
the proposed policy options to: 

Include a requirement for renewable 
energy to be generated on site as part of 
a planning permission. 
Ensure developments are designed in an 
energy efficient and sustainable way to 
include materials, design, climate 
proofing and waste management. 
Set out a criteria based policy on stand-
alone renewable energy generation 
schemes.

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 100



4

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

1. About this document 

5. This Submission stage Development Plan 
Document takes into account the 
representations that were made relating to the 
Preferred Options Document, as well as 
changes to the national and regional policy 
context.  It sets out detailed spatial planning 
policies that reflect the local distinctiveness of 
Chorley Borough and proposes how the 
policies can be implemented and monitored. 
These will help the Council to meet its 
responsibility to reduce the effects of climate 
change and lessen other adverse impacts on 
the environment. 

6. Sustainability Appraisal work has tested and 
informed the options from which the detailed 
policies are derived. Appendix 1 provides more 
details. The separate Sustainability Appraisal 
Report goes into considerable detail and it can 
be concluded that the two policies proposed 
will have a positive impact for Chorley. 
Following a Screening Report process it is not 
considered necessary to undertake an 
Appropriate Assessment under the Habitats 
Regulations Assessment. 

7. This submission stage Development Plan 
Document was approved for consultation at 
the Council meeting on 18 September 2007.  
Representations can be made to this 
document during the six week period X 
October Y- November 2007.

8. Following this period of consultation the 
representations will be forwarded to the 
Secretary of State who will appoint an 
independent Planning Inspector to examine 
the Soundness of the Development Plan 
Document and set out recommendations that 
will be binding on the Council.

.

9. The envisaged timetable for the remaining 
preparation process is set out below:

Submission to Secretary of State - 
October 2007.
Pre-examination meeting – February 
2008.
Public Examination - April 2008.
Adoption – November 2008.

Sustainability Appraisal involves 
considering the social, economic and 

environmental impacts of the policies in 
this document. 

Habitats Regulation Assessment requires 
a determination of whether a proposed 

plan in combination with other plans and 
projects is likely to have a significant effect 

on sites designated for the protection of 
habitats and species of European 

importance. If significant effects are likely 
Appropriate Assessment is required to 

determine whether the plan would 
adversely affect the integrity of the sites. 

The term “Soundness” relates to nine 
tests set out in Appendix 2.  These relate 

to the three broad headings of Procedural; 
Conformity; Coherence, Consistency and 
Effectiveness. It may be that all of those 

who have made comments are content to 
submit written representations. In such a 
circumstance there would be no public 

sitting of the Examination. 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 101



5

2. Background 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

10. This Development Plan Document sets out 
what policies the Council intends to use when 
considering planning applications to ensure 
that the impacts of new development on 
climate change, and on the environment 
generally, are as benign as possible. It 
relates to energy efficiency, the reduction in 
carbon emissions, construction that is 
adaptable to climate change, as well as the 
promotion of renewable energy generation 
and the wider issue of waste reduction. It will 
also act as a promotional document to 
encourage all partners with an interest in the 
Chorley area to work towards the objective of 
sustainable development. It has been 
prepared in close co-operation with a number 
of stakeholders, in particular United Utilities, 
the Environment Agency and Natural 
England.

11. It takes into account the objectives of 
relevant national, regional and local 
strategies as well as the distinctive 
characteristics of Chorley Borough. It also 
draws heavily on the 2005 report 
‘Opportunities for Renewable Energy in 
Chorley’.  This detai led evidence 
demonstrates that there is very significant 
potential to capture renewable sources of 
energy in the Borough.

12. So as to keep this policy document short 
detailed supporting background information is 
contained in separate documents

1
.

13. Given the fast evolving nature of relevant 
technologies and related legislation a 
detailed (draft) Supplementary Planning 
Document on Sustainable Resources

2

provides useful background information and 
technical advice, including useful contacts. 

14. This Development Plan Document has been 
prepared in advance of the Core Strategy of 
the Local Development Framework. This is 
because Chorley is very well placed to be a 
leading authority in sustainable resources in 
the North West and, given the compelling 
imperative of climate change, as well as the 
requirements of the Borough Community 
Strategy, the sooner such principles and 
policies are implemented the better.

15. Transport is a major user of fossil fuels and 
contributor to global warming. Issues 
concerning the location of developments, and 
accessibility by different types of transport 
will be considered in policies to be contained 
in the forthcoming Core Strategy.

1 Technical Supporting Documents are available either from the Council’s Offices or on the Council’s web site. 
2 To be finalised and adopted once the Council has receipt of the Inspector’s recommendations following the Examination 

of this Development Plan Document. 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 102



6

3. National Context 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

16. The purpose of the Climate Change and 
Sustainable Energy Act 2006 is to, “ enhance 
the United Kingdom’s contribution to 
combating change.” Local authorities such as 
Chorley Council are  required to:

Improve efficiency in the use of energy.
Increase the amount of electricity or 
heat through micro generation or other 
low emission technology or source.
Reduce the emissions of greenhouse 
gases.
Reduce the numbers of households 
living in fuel poverty.

17. Policies in this document directly relate to 
these requirements.

18. The Government’s objective is to cut the 
United Kingdom’s carbon emissions by 60% 
by 2050 with real interim progress towards 
this by 2020. Planning Policy Statement 
(PPS) 22 - ‘Renewable Energy’ sets out how 
the planning system will contribute to this.  
More specifically PPS22 states that, “the
wider environmental and economic benefits 
of all proposals for renewable energy 
projects, whatever their scale, are material 
considerations that should be given 
significant weight in determining whether 

projects should be granted planning 
permission.” 

19. The now former, Chancellor referred to all 
new homes being “zero carbon” by 2016 in 
his pre-Budget Statement in December 2006. 
This requirement has been reiterated in the 
recent Housing Green Paper.  The draft 
Planning Policy Statement: ‘Planning and 
Climate Change’ (a supplement to PPS1) 
was released for consultation in December 
2006. This made clear that spatial planning 
has an important role in combating global 
warming and that this role is central to both 
producing development plan documents and 
to assessing planning applications. Due to 
the importance of climate change the draft 
PPS supplement states that all substantial 
developments should include renewable 
energy capture so as to reduce carbon 
emissions by at least 10% irrespective of 
whether there is an adopted planning policy 
seeking to do this.

20. The Stern Review: ‘The Economics of 
Climate Change’ (2006) has set out the 
important role that planning has in combating 
climate change and that, “the costs of 
stabilising the climate are significant but 
manageable and that delay would be 
dangerous and much more costly”.

21. Building Regulations that set minimum 
construction standards, have become 
increasingly strict and will continue to be 
more challenging particularly in the use of 
energy. The Code for Sustainable Homes 
published in December 2006, sets out a 
standard, easily recognisable rating for 
sustainable homes. All publicly funded 
houses will be required to reach Level 3 of 
the Code which is significantly more stringent 
than the current Building Regulations.

Greenhouse gases are those in the 
atmosphere which prevent the sun’s heat 

reflected from the earth’s surface from 
escaping into outer space and so 

contribute to global warming.  The most 
common greenhouse gas is carbon 

dioxide.

A household is said to be in fuel poverty 
if it needs to spend more than 10% of its 
income on fuel to adequately heat their 

home.

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 103



7

3. National Context 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

26. Once adopted this Sustainable Resources 
Development Plan Document, together with 
saved policies from the Chorley Borough 
Local Plan Review, and other forthcoming 
Development Plan Documents within the 
Local Development Framework, the 
Regional Spatial Strategy and the 
Lancashire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 
will make up the Development Plan.   Advice 
set out in Planning Policy Statements is not 
replicated in this document as under the new 
planning system it is considered 
unnecessary to duplicate published national 
planning policies.

The Code for Sustainable Homes is a 
progressive six stage set of construction 

and other development requirements.  
More details are available on 

www.communities.gov.uk.  The Code is a 
development of the Building Research 

Establishment  BREEAM ratings for 
‘EcoHomes’ - more details are available 

on www.breeam.org.uk

22. The consultation document ‘Building a 
Greener Future: Towards Zero Carbon 
Development’ has as its objective that by 
2016 new homes will produce no carbon 
emissions.  That is rated as Code 6 of the 
Code for Sustainable Homes.  This rating 
does not just relate to the energy efficiency of 
a building but also to the wider sustainability 
of the development.  It suggests that by 2008 
it would be mandatory for all new homes to 
have a Code rating. It also sets out a draft 
timetable as to when each higher Code level 
is likely to be reflected in the Building 

4. Strategic Context 

Regulations. The Sustainable Code is similar 
to the BREEAM ratings for the non-domestic 
sector. The policies in this Development Plan 
Document directly relate to these measures.

23. Also in December 2006, a consultation 
document on ‘Water Efficiency in New 
Buildings’ was published. This stresses the 
importance of reducing water usage and 
considers that the best way forward is 
through amendments to the Building 
Regulations.

24. All new developments now require an Energy 
Performance Certificate. This also relates to 
the sale of older properties except for some 
smaller homes, which are likely to be 
included in the future.

25. This Development Plan Document is the local 
response to implementing these national 
objectives and ensuring that Chorley 
businesses and residents alike are able to 
benefit from good forward thinking design 
and best practice.

27. The current Regional Spatial Strategy is the 
Regional Planning Guidance for the North 
West adopted in March 2003. This will be 
replaced by a new Regional Spatial Strategy 
which is intended to be adopted in 2008. 
Until this Strategy  is adopted the Joint 
Lancashire Structure Plan adopted in March 
2005 remains part of the Development Plan. 
Work is taking place on replacing the 
Lancashire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 
but until the new Joint Lancashire Minerals 
and Waste Development Framework is 
adopted, this will continue to be the relevant 
planning document relating to waste issues. 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 104



8

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

In the interests of brevity Appendix 3 
separately refers to the relevant strategic 
policies. The Waste Minimisation 
Supplementary Planning Document is very 
relevant to this policy document and can be 
viewed at http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/
environment/lmwlp/index.asp.

28. These strategic documents and the national 
policy statements provide pointers to the 
detailed policy specific to Chorley that should 
be contained within the Local Development 
Framework, under the umbrella term of 
‘Sustainable Resources’. They fully support 
the spatial objectives set out below including 
the objective of setting site-specific targets 
for renewable energy generation.

29. In July 2006 the North West Regional 
Assembly published ‘Advancing Sustainable 
Energy - A Sustainable Energy Strategy For 
the North West’.  This makes clear that all 
energy users of the North West have a 
responsibility to cut their carbon emissions.

30. The Lancashire Economic Partnership’s 
Lancashire Environmental Strategy includes 
Energy and Environmental Technology as 
one of its Regional Priorities in the 
development of the Knowledge Economy. 
Therefore the development of a strong local 
demand for renewable technology, energy 
saving installations, design and practical 
construction/manufacturing skills, will directly 
contribute to this regional priority.

How the Objectives of the Community 
Strategies relate to the Sustainable Resources 
Development Plan Document. 

31. Ambition Lancashire 2005-2025 is the 

Community Strategy for Lancashire. It sets 
out a number of actions amongst which the 
following have a direct link to policies SR1 
and SR2 of the Sustainable Resources 
Development Plan.

32. The Actions are to:

Promote energy efficiency in the 
domestic and business sector, 
especially among the most intensive 
users.
Encourage the development and 
deployment of renewable energy 
technology.

33. In developing Chorley Borough’s own 
Community Strategy

3
 there was close 

working  during the initial preparation of the 
Local Development Framework.  Planning 
Officers attended the meetings that took 
place with the public during consultation on 
the early stages of the Community Strategy. 
This joint working prepared the ground for 
the Issues and Options Paper of the Local 
Development Framework published in the 
autumn of 2004. This, in turn, directly 
influenced the two policies SR1: 
Incorporating Sustainable Resources into 
New Development and SR2: Renewable 
Energy. Appendix 4 sets out the relevant 
extracts form Chorley’s Community Strategy.

34. One of the related actions of the Chorley 
Community Strategy is to develop a 
sustainable energy strategy for the Borough 
by 2008. This falls within Goal 1 of the  
Community Strategy to, “Improve our urban 
and rural surrounds and enhance the wildlife 
of the borough to provide an attractive 
environment for residents, visitors, and 

4. Strategic Context 

3 Chorley Borough’s Community Strategy 2005-2025 was published in October 2005. 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 105



9

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

investors.” The Sustainable Resources 
Development Plan Document and the 
additional information that is contained within 
the Supplementary Planning Document will 
be complementary to this.

35. The Chorley Community Strategy also refers 
to waste minimisation, increased recycling 
and improvements in the energy efficiency of 
private sector housing. Reducing waste, 
ensuring that recycling facilities are designed 
into all developments at the planning 
application stage and that developments are 
designed to be energy efficient are all 
considerations that are directly addressed in 
the policies in this Development Plan 
Document. Appendix 4 illustrates the large 
number of partners that are working together 
with the Council on these shared priorities. 
Partners include the Chorley and South 
Ribble Home Improvement Agency, energy 
suppliers, Lancashire County Council, 
Chorley Civic Society, the North West 
Development Agency, the Chamber of 
Commerce, local businesses, Sustainability 
Northwest, the Environment Agency, local 
businesses and Lancashire Community 
Development Limited (LCDL). Both Ambition 

4. Strategic Context 

Lancashire and Chorley’s Community 
Strategy are currently being reconsidered.  
Early indications are that climate change is 
increasingly moving up the local agenda and 
will feature more prominently in revised 
versions of these Community Strategies.

Other Relevant Strategies/Regulations 

36. Normally, built developments require at least 
two types of approval - planning permission 
and Building Regulations consent. The latter 
is more concerned with ensuring that 
buildings are well built in terms of meeting 
construction standards and are safe to use. 
However, the scope of Building Regulations 
is expanding. Part L came into force in April 
2006. This considerably increases the 
requirement for energy efficiency albeit not 
necessarily requiring the integration of 
renewable energy capture. This Development 
Plan Document is primarily concerned with 
planning requirements but while some of 
these will be backed up through the 
implementation of the Building Regulations 
developers will be encouraged to exceed 
these minimum standards.

5. Issues and Evidence Specific to Chorley Borough 

37. There is national and international consensus 
that global warming is a fact and that one 
way to prevent the negative impacts of global 
warming is to reduce carbon emissions.

38. To do this and for Chorley to play its part in 
tackling climate change it is important to 
minimise resource demand, cut unnecessary 
use, increase efficiency and generate 
renewable energy. This includes the 
sustainable sourcing and reuse of 
construction materials and the recycling of 

waste. Chorley Borough has the one of the 
highest rates of domestic waste recycling 
(including composting) in the country (over 
40% of all such waste in 2007). The space 
demands on households to sort, and 
temporarily store, waste for recycling are 
large and the design of new housing should 
take account of this to ensure the high rates 
improve further. Other forms of development 
require to be designed to facilitate the 
principles of reduce, reuse and recycle.

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 106



10

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

5. Issues and Evidence Specific to Chorley Borough 

39. Initiatives such as energy reduction, water 
management and energy efficiency are 
important. These can be achieved effectively 
by planning policy implementation.  It is 
unlikely that there will be any obvious 
negative impact on Chorley’s environment 
from implementing these initiatives.

40. However, the generation of power from 
renewable sources is dependent on the 
physical environment. This is self-evidently 
specific to Chorley Borough. The 
environment of Chorley, including its climate 
and topography provides both opportunities 
and restrictions. The following describes the 
physical characteristics of the Borough.

41. In the east of the Borough are sparsely 
populated upland areas forming part of the 
West Pennine Moors. On the lower slopes 
are stone built villages.  The central part of 
the Borough, between the M6 and M61 
motorways, is more built up, with the principal 
market and former mill town of Chorley and 
to the south Adlington, which is an important 
engineering centre, and the former mining/
textiles township of Coppull. To the north of 
Chorley town are the settlements of Clayton-
le-Woods, Euxton and Whittle-le-Woods, 
which have expanded considerably through 
suburban developments since the 1960s. 
The west of the Borough is typically lowland 
countryside which becomes flatter further to 
the west as it becomes part of the Lancashire 
Plain. Here, red brick villages are 
characteristic, the largest being Eccleston 
and Croston, which experienced some 
suburban growth in the second half of the 
20th century.

42. Around 70% of the Chorley Borough is within 
the Green Belt. There are no Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty but there are 9 

designated Conservation Areas, 422 Listed 
Buildings (of architectural or historic interest), 
and 2 nature conservation Sites of Special 
Scientific Interest.

43. Chorley is a generally affluent Borough but 
there are pockets of deprivation with 
households living in fuel poverty.  The local 
Home Improvement Agency is working with 
Chorley and South Ribble Councils to 
remove fuel poverty. The Borough also has a 
higher than average level of residents who 
describe their health as ‘not good’ and who 
are therefore more likely to have higher 
energy requirements.

44. In 2005 the Council published a report on 
‘Opportunities for Renewable Energy in 
Chorley’. This concluded work done by a  
working party made up of representatives 
from Renewables Northwest, Sustainability 
Northwest (sponsored by the GONW), the 
Council, the public and other stakeholders.  
This report is a significant part of the 
evidence base on which this Sustainable 
Resources Development Plan Document is 
based.

45. The Report referred to the following energy 
sources:

Wind
Hydro
Landfill gas 
Biomass
Solar
Anaerobic digestion
Ground source heat

46. The separate draft Sustainable Resources 
Supplementary Planning Document, includes 
maps that were taken from this Report. The 
maps were presented at the second of two 
workshops attended by the public, interested 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 107



11

5. Issues and Evidence Specific to Chorley Borough

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

4 www.metoffice/gov.uk/climate/uk/averages/19712000 sites 

amenity groups and developers. These maps 
show the various opportunities for capturing 
renewable energy within Chorley Borough. 
They do not define areas where there will be 
a presumption in favour of developing a 
particular form of energy capture nor do they 
preclude such installations being developed 
outside of these areas. In line with national 
advice it is considered more appropriate that 
these maps be contained within a 
Supplementary Planning Document but they 
will inform consideration of any planning 
applications for stand-alone renewable 
energy generation schemes. 

47. This research work has been complemented 
by a study undertaken by the Lovejoy 
Consultancy in a report that sets out 
landscape sensitivity to wind turbine 
development in Lancashire.  Excerpts from 
this will be included in the adopted version of 
the Supplementary Planning Guidance.  
However the report shows there are 
extensive areas of the Borough with a low 
landscape sensitivity to wind development.

48. In addition, it is important to note that the 
average rainfall at the nearest weather 
station to Chorley Borough is 871 mm per 
year, compared to the national average of 
838 mm

4
.  Therefore, this is significant in that 

there is the opportunity to utilise this on site 
in buildings and so save money and 
resources through not treating water.  
However high rainfall is also a threat in that 
surface water run-off needs to be managed 
effectively to reduce the risk of localised 
flooding.

49. The conclusions of the ‘Opportunities for 
Renewable Energy in Chorley’ report were 

that given the specific natural resources of 
the Borough, in particular wind, there are 
many opportunities for renewable energy 
generation to be integrated into proposed 
and existing developments (micro-
generation) and for viable stand-alone 
renewable energy schemes.

50. These locally distinctive characteristics of 
Chorley Borough, backed by the research 
evidence demonstrates the ample 
opportunities to utilise these natural 
resources and leads to the following spatial 
vision.

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 108



“That by 2016, the principles of 

sustainable development and, in 

particular, a positive attitude to reducing 

carbon emissions, will run through all 

development activity, with Chorley 

Borough Council acknowledged as a 

leading authority enabling residents and 

businesses to reap economic, social 

and environmental benefits." 

The following is a positive spatial vision for 
Chorley:

12

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

4 www.metoffice/gov.uk/climate/uk/averages/19712000 sites 

6. Spatial Vision for Chorley for the use of Sustainable Resources

51. The following objectives are derived from this 
vision:

Promote the reduction of energy 
requirements in new developments. 
Minimise waste production and 
encourage the recycling of waste 
products in new developments. 
Require the use of construction 
materials which have been re-used or 
come from sustainable sources. 
Manage water in a sustainable manner, 
reducing consumption and making 
greater use of recycled water in new 
developments.
Impose clearly signalled year on year 
targets for the energy requirements of 
buildings to be met on site by renewable 
energy capture. 
Increase year on year installed 
renewable energy capacity in the 
Borough.

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 109



7. The Development Plan Policies 

13

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Policy SR1: Incorporating Sustainable Resources into New Development 

Subject to other planning policies, planning permission for development will only be 
granted on proposals of 5 or more dwellings or non-residential units of 500 sq metres 
or more floor space where all of the following criteria are satisfied; 

(a) Evidence is set out to demonstrate that the design and layout of the building 
minimises energy use, maximises energy efficiency and is flexible enough to 
withstand climate change and; 

(b) At least 20% of the building materials to be used will come from recycled sources 
so as to minimise the energy costs of production, with all other materials to be 
sustainably sourced and; 

(c) Appropriate accessible renewable energy power generation equipment is to be 
installed and implemented to reduce the carbon emissions of predicted energy use 
by at least 10%. (This minimum figure is to increase to 15% for any applications 
received from 2010 and to 20% by 2015 onwards) and; 

(d) The use of non-grey water is to be minimised and the quality, quantity and amenity 
of surface water is to be managed through the implementation of sustainable 
urban drainage systems where appropriate and;

(e) Appropriate storage space is to be provided for recyclable waste materials and  
composting and;

(f) If the proposed development lies within a nationally designated area, such as a 
Conservation Area or affects a Listed Building, it  will still be expected to satisfy 
the criteria above through the sensitive integration of energy efficiency measures 
and micro-generation techniques such that there are no adverse impacts on the 
character of designated features of the historic and natural environment or their 
wider settings. 

This will be formalised by dwellings being required to meet Level 3 of the Code for 
Sustainable Homes by 2010, Level 4 by 2013 and Level 6 by 2016. All other buildings 
should be rated “very good” under the BREEAM standards from 2010. 

The Council will encourage other developments to integrate such principles into any 
building works that they may undertake. 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 110



14

7. The Development Plan Policies 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Reasoned Justification 

52. Chorley is well placed to provide new 
development that can be designed in a 
sustainable way. It also currently produces 
relatively high levels of carbon emissions. 
The Borough is very rich in natural 
renewable resources and the way its towns 
and villages have developed mean that the 
problems experienced in heavily built up 
urban areas, such as issues of wind 
turbulence, and over-shadowing are for the 
most part avoided. Ground conditions are 
such that it is generally suitable for ground 
source heat. This allows the straight-forward 
integration of micro-generation technologies 
into building design. There is no shortage of 
land for development and the Council has 
made no secret of its proposed challenging 
requirements for new developments to be 
built sustainably. The requirements of this 
policy have been clearly sign-posted over a 
time period and would not impact on the 
economics of bringing forward sites for 
development. Consequently, the policy 
should be applicable throughout the 
Borough.

53. The requirement to design a building to be 
as carbon efficient as possible and to include 
renewable energy capture facilities should 
be integrated into the design process from 
the outset. This will result in financial savings 
to the developer compared to a situation 
where such technologies are only 
considered late on in the process of 
designing a building.

54. On the whole, areas of visual or historic 
sensitivity within Chorley Borough will be 
able to integrate appropriate renewable 
energy features to satisfy this policy. If it 
were considered that the special 
circumstances of the statutory protection 

would be compromised by the 
implementation of this policy then this 
requirement would not be insisted upon. 
However, the Council would need to be 
persuaded that a serious attempt had been 
made to integrate energy efficiency 
measures and renewable energy capacity in 
the building design. The fact that a building 
is Listed for its historic or architectural 
importance would not in itself be a reason 
not to implement the policy. The National 
Trust has been able to integrate such 
requirements in some of its properties 
without harm. Further advice is found on the 
website www.helm.org.uk.

55. Detailed advice and links to useful 
organisations is set out in the Sustainable 
Resources Supplementary Planning 
Document. It covers topics such as energy 
use, waste recycling, materials, water, and 
renewable energy capture. This useful 
document is applicable to all developments 
irrespective of whether planning permission 
is required.

56. The sustainable management of construction 
waste is included within this policy to ensure 
that developers are aware of their 
responsibility set out in the Lancashire 
Minerals Waste Local Plan and Joint 
Lancashire Structure Plan and the existing 
and emerging Regional Spatial Strategies to 
minimise waste. It also has a significant 
impact on the carbon used in developments. 
A Supplementary Planning Document on 
Waste Minimisation has been produced by 
the Joint Lancashire Planning Authorities 
that gives greater guidance on this subject. 
This includes what information should be 
included in the Design and Access 
Statement (required to accompany any 
planning application) in relation to waste 
minimisation and the recycling of 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 111



15

7. The Development Plan Policies 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

construction materials. The figure of 20% of 
materials from renewable sources is 
considered reasonable and  has not been 
objected to during any of the earlier 
preparatory work on this document. 

57. The integration of renewable energy capture 
into developments is increasingly becoming 
the norm. As technologies improve, 
amendments are made to permitted 
development rights and the comparative 
costs of micro-generation technologies come 
down it will be less onerous for a fixed 
proportion of a development’s energy 
requirements to be generated on site. 
Therefore to ensure that challenging targets 
set are met, the amount of carbon emissions 
to be saved through energy generated by 
developments, will be increased over time 
depending on when planning permission is 
granted. A result of this will be that fuel costs 
are less of a liability for businesses and 
residents alike. This is evidently important for 
the elderly and other vulnerable people.

58. Applicants are required to demonstrate in 
their Design and Access Statement 
(submitted to accompany a planning 
application) how the integration of renewable 
energy capture will be able to reduce carbon 
emissions. Details of how the developer is to 
submit information on carbon reduction will 
be integrated in to proposals will be included 
in the Sustainable Resources Supplementary 
Planning Document.

59. However, developers will be required to set 
out the overall energy consumption of the 
development expressed in kilowatt hours 
broken down into power source, ie gas and 
electricity. Then this will then be converted 
into carbon emissions. The developer would 
then have to reduce the applicable % carbon 
emissions by integrating renewable energy 

capture on site. Evidently a reduction in the 
energy required to support a development 
will result in a smaller amount of energy 
being required to be generated through the 
integration of renewable energy generation. 
If a developer does consider that they do not 
have access to a reasonable approximation 
of the future energy requirements of the 
property they will be able to use an accepted 
industry standard. However, if they have 
designed the building to be energy efficient 
in line with the policy the standard figures 
are likely to be higher than the actual energy 
requirement. This would result in the 
generation of more renewable energy than 
required by the standards and potentially 
more costs. Therefore it is in the applicant’s 
interest to provide accurate information.

60. The introduction of a Local Area Network (a 
decentralised energy supply) would be 
encouraged on larger developments.  This 
has the advantage of being efficient as the 
energy does not have far to travel from 
source to use and therefore less is lost in 
transit. It also has the advantage of not 
requiring separate renewable energy 
installations in individual buildings.

61. The responsible use of water resources such 
as low volume taps in toilets and bathrooms 
and water efficient appliances paired with 
simple methods such as including water butts 
in gardens can help save water.  
Developments should be designed to cope 
with extremes of weather, including flash 
flooding, through the avoidance of large 
areas of hard standing. 

62. The integration of appropriate Sustainable 
Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) is an 
important way to deal with these challenges. 
However, in the past there have been issues 
regarding who is responsible for the 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 112



16

7. The Development Plan Policies 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

maintenance of such systems. Therefore, 
when a SUDS is integrated into a 
development, planning permission will not be 
granted until a realistic management scheme 
has been negotiated. An interim Code of 
Practice for SUDS has been developed by 
the National SUDS Working Group and can 
be accessed at www.ciria.org/suds/icop.htm

63. It is important that developments whether 
they are for residential or commercial use 
provide adequate space for refuse waste to 
be collected and stored otherwise it may be 
difficult to increase recycling rates in line with 
the targets set. 

64. Conditions will be imposed on planning 
permissions to ensure that the reduction in 
carbon emissions is retained over the life of 
the development.  All the above principles of 
good design and sustainable development 
should be considered even where planning 
permission is not required for a development 
or other works.

65. A good example of where planning 
permission may not be required but the 
policy has an influence is the improvement of 
energy efficiency of vulnerable people’s 
homes. This has a direct impact on the 
reduction of fuel poverty. Chorley is working 
in partnership with South Ribble Borough 
Council and the local Home Improvement 
Agency to reduce fuel poverty.

66. The following indicators, targets and 
milestones will be monitored through the 
Local Development Framework Annual 
Monitoring Report. Higher targets will be 
pursued if monitoring shows the minimum 
provisions are being frequently exceeded.

67. Not all the measurements are restricted to 

development that can be controlled through 
planning permissions. This reflects the 
spatial planning and corporate activity of the 
Council and its partners and interested 
stakeholders.

68. Some of these targets may be shared.

69. Policy SR1 relates to the following spatial 
objectives:

Promote the reduction of energy 
requirements in new developments. 

Minimise waste production and 
encourage the recycling of waste 
products in new developments. 

Require the use of construction 
materials that have been re-used or 
come from sustainable sources. 

Manage water in a sustainable manner, 
reducing consumption and making 
greater use of recycled water in new 
developments.

Impose clearly signalled year on year 
targets for the energy requirements of 
buildings to be met on site by 
renewable energy capture.

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 113



17

7. The Development Plan Policies 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

70. These can be monitored in the following way: 

Performance Indicator Baseline Interim
Milestone

Target How Collected

SAP (The Government’s Standard 
Assessment Procedure for Energy 
Rating of a dwelling) for housing in 
the public sector. 

2004/05 
69

2009/10 
74

2014/15 
80

Already collected as Best Value 
Performance Indicator – detailed 
information re housing ie 
construction and insulation etc 
analysed using standard software. 

SAP ratings for housing in the 
private sector. 

2004/05 
49

2009/10 
55

2014/15 
67

Already collected as Best Value 
Performance Indicator – detailed 
information re housing ie 
construction and insulation analysed 
using standard software. 

Number of vulnerable households 
living in fuel poverty. 

2004
7.2%

- 2010 
Zero

To be measured using a calculation 
of household expenses, wages and 
fuel cost. 

Number of existing properties 
installing cavity wall insulation. 

2005/06 
524

2009/10 
Increase by 
15% above 

baseline

2014/15 
Increase by 

30%

To be measured through Building 
Regulation notifications. 

Tonnes of CO2 per capita for 
domestic emissions. 

2004
2.9 tonnes 

- 2020 
To be in top 

three
performers in 
Lancashire 

To be measured through 
Government data

5
.

Tonnes of CO2 per capita. 2004 
10.24 MW 
(Current 

North West 
average per 

capita
9.04 MW) 

- 2015 
To be at or 
below North 

West 
Average

To be measured through 
Government data

6
.

5 www.defra.gov.uk/environment/statistics/globatmos/download/regionalrpt 
6 ibid 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 114



18

7. The Development Plan Policies 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Performance Indicator Baseline Interim
Milestone

Target How Collected

Percentage of household waste 
recycled. 

2006/07 
23.6%

2009/10 
To be at 

least 25.5% 

Detailed information re recycling and 
composting already collected as Best 
Value.

Percentage of household waste 
composted. 

2006/07 
20%

2009/10 
To be at 

least 24.5% 

Percentage of households served 
by kerbside collection for 
recyclables. 

2006/07 
98%

- 2010 
100%

Detailed information already collected 
as Best Value Performance Indicator. 

Percentage of developments over 
threshold reducing carbon 
emissions at requisite level. 

None 2009/10 
To be 90% 

of approvals 

2015/16 
100%

To be measured through monitoring of 
planning applications and Building 
Regulations data. 

Percentage of all developments 
over threshold hitting Code for 
Sustainable Homes and BREEAM 
standards. 

None 2009/10 
To be 90% 

of approvals 

2015/16 
100%

To be measured through monitoring of 
planning applications and Building 
Regulations data. 

2015
Long term 
target for 

household 
waste to be 

recycled 
and

composted 

71 To date it is difficult to measure the use of 
construction materials on site and the use of 
water. However, as soon as an easily verified 
method of monitoring is found this will be 
included within the Local Development 
Framework  Annual Monitoring Report.

72. The policy will be implemented on the whole 
through the development control (planning 
application) function of the Council. Other 
Council departments are working together 
towards meeting these targets in concert with 
the Chorley Partnership (the Local Strategic 
Partnership). However the policy, together 
with the draft Supplementary Planning 
Document, should provide guidance for those 
who do not necessarily require planning 
permission for what they are proposing to do 

but wish to undertake high quality 
development. An example of which, would be 
the refurbishment of existing properties.

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 115



19

7. The Development Plan Policies 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

SR2: Renewable Energy Schemes 

Proposals for renewable energy schemes will be supported and planning permission 
granted where the following criteria are met:

(a) The proposal would not have an unacceptable impact on the landscape character 
and visual appearance of the local area, including the urban environment.

(b) The reason for the designation of a site with statutory protection would not be 
compromised by the development.  

(c) Any noise, odour, traffic or other impact of development is mitigated so as not to 
cause unacceptable detriment to local amenity.  

(d) No significant harm will be caused to local nature, ecology and biodiversity and any 
adverse impact will be appropriately mitigated and/or compensatory provisions are 
made.

(e) Any significant adverse local affects of the proposal are outweighed by wider 
environmental, social and economic benefits.

73. Planning Policy Statement 22 - ‘Renewable 
Energy’ and the Government’s commitment 
to increasing the amount of energy derived 
from renewable sources means that 
applications for stand-alone schemes are 
required to be considered positively.  If in the 
future Chorley had already met its proportion 
for the targets for renewable energy 
generation set out in the Regional Spatial 
Strategy this would not have any influence in 
determining any application.

74. The joint study undertaken by Renewables 
North West and Sustainability Northwest, 
‘Opportunities for Renewable Energy in 
Chorley’, makes clear that Chorley is well 
placed to contribute to regional and national 
targets for energy from renewable sources.

75. These areas of opportunity include urban 
industrial and employment sites, as well as 
the rural areas.  Chorley is well placed to 
utilise the high winds from the south west. 
Much of the Borough is open and exposed to 

these prevailing winds with the West 
Pennine Moors rising to the east. However, 
actual windspeeds or the commercial 
viability of developments cannot be taken 
into account when considering applications.

76. Other technologies such as anaerobic 
digestion, hydro-power and landfill gas could 
all be exploited within the Borough.  Chorley 
has a large number of dairy farms as well a 
number of old water courses that could be 
possibly harnessed. It also includes a 
number of land fill tips. No technology should 
be discounted.

77. Any application for renewable energy 
generation will be required to be sensitively 
located and designed. Given the fast evolving 
nature of this relatively new sector it would be 
inappropriate to put much detail in the 
Development Plan Document but to set out 
broad tests of impact by which all 
technologies would be judged. 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 116



20

7. The Development Plan Policies 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

78. The (draft) Supplementary Planning 
Document that accompanies this 
Development Plan Document gives detailed 
advice how differing technologies can be 
utilised and sets out in detail the impacts of 
the various technologies and means to 
mitigate any adverse effects.   Additional 
information including links to a number of 
web sites such as www.helm.org.uk which
provides advice relating to wind energy, 
climate change and historic buildings, is 
contained in the Supplementary Planning 
Document. This information will be updated 
quickly and regularly through the frequent 
review of the Supplementary Planning 
Document.

79. When considering development within a 
protected area that has a national or local 
designation it is important to understand 
what makes the area special, and in 
particular what impact any development 
would have on these characteristics whether 
they be visual, historic, or natural or 
ecological. Any development will be 
expected to minimise any impact, and 
compensatory or mitigation measures will be 
required. If the impact is unacceptable in 
relation to the objectives of the specific 
designation such as the setting of a Listed 
Building it will be refused.  Developers will be 
expected to liaise with the relevant statutory 
bodies and amenity groups and 
organisations to ensure that ecological or 
other negative impacts are either avoided or 
mitigation measures are included. 
Environmental Impact Assessments may be 
required.

80. The Joint Lancashire Structure Plan 
authorities undertook research (the Lovejoy 
Study) on landscape sensitivity to wind 
development. An excerpt of the map setting 
out the sensitivity of the landscape to wind 

development is to be contained in the 
Supplementary Planning Document.  This 
demonstrates a number of areas within 
Chorley in which there are perceived to be 
few visual constraints to wind development.

8.1 These levels of sensitivity will not be used to 
determine applications for wind turbines but 
can be used as a tool as to what types of 
development are likely to be appropriate in 
different areas of the Borough.

82. Developments incidental to energy 
generation will need to be sensitively 
implemented. For example, new means of 
vehicular access or connections to the 
national grid will be required to be well 
designed, and any impacts mitigated. Where 
appropriate the Council will ensure that 
planning obligations (legal agreements 
related to planning permissions) are used to 
ensure that once the development or 
infrastructure is no longer required it is 
removed and the site restored.  Planning 
obligations will also be used for any other 
reason to ensure the development is 
acceptable.

83. Where appropriate noise impact 
assessments may be required as conditions 
to any planning permissions.

84. In line with the Council’s Statement of 
Community Involvement, adopted in July 
2006, developers are encouraged to consult 
with the local community prior to submitting 
any planning application that may prove 
controversial as well as major infrastructure 
proposals. Applicants should then provide 
the planning authority with a Record of 
Community Involvement setting out how any 
engagement took place, what came from it 
and how this affected the submitted 
application.

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 117



21

7. The Development Plan Policies 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Performance Indicator Baseline Interim
Milestone

Target How Collected

Tonnes of CO2 per capita (all 
emission sources) 

2004
10.24 MW 

Current NW 
average per 

capita
9.04 MW 

- 2014/15 
To be at or 
below North 

West 
England’s 
average 

To be monitored through Government 
data

7
.

Mega watt of energy from 
renewable sources (excluding 
micro generation but includes 
energy from landfill) 

As at 2005 
4.3 MW 

2009/10 
13.2 MW 

2014/15 
Greater than 
16.9 MW to 
exceed pro 
rata by land 

mass
Chorley’s 

contribution 
to

Lancashire’s 
sub regional 
targets set 

by the RSS. 

To be measured through planning 
permissions. 

89. This policy will be implemented through the 
development control function of the Council. 

Existing Policies within the Adopted Chorley 
Borough Local Plan Review 2003

90. The two policies replace policies EP18-
Surface Water Run Off; EP22-Energy 
Conserva t ion ;  EP23-Energy  f rom 
Renewables; EP24-Wind Farms. 

85. The following indicators, targets and Local 
Development Framework milestones will be 
monitored through the Annual Monitoring 
Report. Higher targets will be pursued if 
monitoring shows that those set are being 
frequently exceeded.

86. Not all the measurements are restricted to 
development that can be controlled through 
planning permissions. This reflects the 
spatial planning and corporate activity of the 

Council and its partners and interested 
stakeholders.

87. Policy SR2 relates to the following spatial 
objective:

Increase year on year installed 
renewable energy capacity in the 
Borough.

88. This can be monitored in the following way: 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 118



Appendix 1 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Sustainability Appraisal Testing of the Development Plan Policies

Sustainability Appraisal helps to promote sustainable development through the consideration of likely 
social environmental and economic effects of plan options, policies and proposals.  The following tables 
outline the likely effects of implementing the policies in the Sustainable Resources Development Plan 
Document in relation to social, environmental and economic objectives. 

Policy SR1: Incorporating Sustainable Resources into New Development 

Key to Sustainability Appraisal Effects

/    No link
+   Minor Positive
++ Major Positive

0   Neutral
-   Minor Negative
-- Major Negative

Sustainability  
Objective

Predicted Effects Justification for assessment noting:

Likelihood/certainty of effect occurring (high/

med/low)

Geographical scale of effect

Temporary or permanent effect

Assumptions made

Recommendations for mitigation/improvement

Nature of Effect on 
Baseline/Indicators

Assessment of Effect

Short
term

Medium
term

Long 
term

Social Objectives

1. To reduce social 
exclusion

No link.
/ / /

There is no link between this policy and reducing 
social exclusion.

2. To reduce the need 
to travel, improve 
choice and use of 
sustainable transport 
modes

No link.

/ / /

There is no link between this policy and reducing the 
need to travel, improving choice and the use of 
sustainable transport modes.

3. To improve 
physical health and 
mental health and 
reduce health 
inequalities

Minor positive effect. Should 
have some positive health 
benefits in the long term in 
terms of increasing life 
expectancy and decreasing 
the number of residents 
describing their health as not 
good.

0 0 +

Likelihood/certainty: Medium

Scale: Borough-wide

Temporary/permanent: Permanent

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to a 
reduction in demand for energy, greater levels of 
renewable energy production and a reduction in 
energy production from fossil fuels that cause 
pollution.

Mitigation/improvement: None

4. To improve access 
to good quality 
affordable and 
resource efficient 
housing

Major positive effect. Will 
significantly increase the SAP 
energy ratings of homes. 0 0 ++

Likelihood/certainty: High

Scale: Borough-wide

Temporary/permanent: Permanent

Assumptions made: None

Mitigation/improvement: None

5. To reduce crime, 
disorder and the fear 
of crime 

No link. 

/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and reducing 
crime, disorder and the fear of crime. 

22

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 119



Appendix 1 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Sustainability  
Objective

Predicted Effects
Justification for assessment noting:

Likelihood/certainty of effect occurring (high/

med/low)

Geographical scale of effect

Temporary or permanent effect

Assumptions made

Recommendations for mitigation/improvement

Nature of Effect on 
Baseline/Indicators

Assessment of Effect

Short
term

Medium
term

Long 
term

6. To enable groups 
and communities to 
contribute to decision 
making. 

No link. 

/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and enabling 
groups and communities to contribute to decision 
making.

7. To develop strong 
and positive 
relationships between 
people from different 
backgrounds and 
communities.

No link. 

/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and developing 
strong and positive relationships between people from 
different backgrounds.

8. To improve access 
to an use of basic 
goods, services and 
amenities for all 
groups.

No link. 

/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and improving 
access to and the use of basic goods, services and 
amenities for all groups.

Summary of appraisal against social objectives:

0 0 + 

This policy should help to improve health in the 
long-term and have a significant positive impact in 
terms of the provision of resource efficient 
housing, but will have a minimal impact on the 
other social objectives.  

9. To protect, enhance 
and manage the 
diversity of cultural 
and built environment 
and archaeological 
assets.

Neutral. The policy recognises 
that energy efficiency 
measures and micro 
generation equipment could 
potentially impact negatively 
on the appearance of 
designated areas or Listed 
Buildings. To prevent this 
occurring the policy requires 
that proposals have no 
adverse impact on the 
character of designated 
features of the historic 
environment or their wider 
settings. Will not affect the 
indicators.

0 0 0 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That the policy will prevent 
adverse impacts on designated areas and Listed 
Buildings.

Mitigation/improvement: None. The policy provides 
greater protection for nationally designated areas 
and Listed Buildings than the options set out in the 
March 2007 Sustainable Resources Preferred 
Options document.  

Environmental Objectives 

10. To protect and 
enhance 
environmental quality, 
local character and 
accessibility of the 
landscape across the 
Borough. 

Neutral. The policy recognises 
that energy efficiency 
measures and micro 
generation equipment could 
potentially impact negatively 
on the appearance of 
nationally designated areas or 
Listed Buildings. To prevent 
this occurring the policy 
requires that proposals have 
no adverse impact on the 
character of designated 
features of the historic and 
natural environment or their 
wider settings. Will not affect 
the indicators.

0 0 0 

Likelihood/certainty: Uncertain as less 
development takes place in the countryside 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That the policy will prevent 
adverse impacts on designated areas and Listed 
Buildings.

Mitigation/improvement: None. The policy provides 
greater protection for nationally designated areas 
and Listed Buildings than the options set out in the 
March 2007 Sustainable Resources Preferred 
Options document.

23

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 120



Appendix 1 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Sustainability  
Objective

Predicted Effects
Justification for assessment noting:

Likelihood/certainty of effect occurring (high/

med/low)

Geographical scale of effect

Temporary or permanent effect

Assumptions made

Recommendations for mitigation/improvement

Nature of Effect on 
Baseline/Indicators

Assessment of Effect

Short
term

Medium
term

Long 
term

17. To minimise the 
requirement for energy 
use, promote efficient 
use and increase the 
use of energy from 
renewable resources.

Major positive effect. Should 
lead to an increase in the 
number of planning 
applications that include 
capacity for energy production 
from renewable sources, 
improve the SAP energy 
ratings of homes and increase 
the Borough’s installed 
capacity for energy production 
from renewable sources.  

0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: High 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to a 
reduction in demand for energy, greater levels of 
renewable energy production and a reduction in 
energy production from fossil fuels that cause 
pollution.

Mitigation/improvement: None

18. To minimise waste 
and increase re-use, 
recycling and recovery 
rates.

Major positive effect. The 
policy should encourage more 
sustainable use of building 
materials and better waste 
management, impacting 
positively upon recycling rates 
and household waste levels.   

0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: High 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will encourage 
more efficient use and re-use of building materials 
and encourage more sustainable waste 
management.

Mitigation/improvement: None

Summary of appraisal against environmental 
objectives: 0 + ++ 

This policy should have many significant long-
term positive impacts on the environment.  

19. To reduce 
disparities of the 
Borough’s economic 
performance. 

No link. 

/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and reducing 
disparities of the Borough’s economic performance.

20. To exploit the 
growth potential of 
business sectors. 

Minor positive effect. Over 
time this policy could lead to 
growth in the renewables, 
energy efficiency & 
sustainable waste 
management business 
sectors.

0 + + 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will help to 
provide greater business opportunities in the 
renewables, energy efficiency and waste 
management sectors.  

Mitigation/improvement: None

Economic Objectives 

21. To develop and 
market the Borough’s 
image.

Minor positive effect. May 
increase the % of people 
satisfied with the Borough as 
place to live and help to 
improve the Borough’s image.

0 + + 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That incorporating sustainable 
resources in new developments will be viewed 
positively by people.  

Mitigation/improvement: None

22. To deliver urban 
renaissance. 

Minor positive effect. Will not 
affect the indicators, but may 
help to improve environmental 
conditions in urban areas and 
boost the image of the 
Borough’s settlements.

0 + + 

Likelihood/certainty: Uncertain 

Scale: Borough-wide, in urban areas 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That incorporating sustainable 
resources in new developments in urban areas will 
be viewed positively by people. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

24

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 121



Appendix 1 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Sustainability  
Objective

Predicted Effects
Justification for assessment noting:

Likelihood/certainty of effect occurring (high/

med/low)

Geographical scale of effect

Temporary or permanent effect

Assumptions made

Recommendations for mitigation/improvement

Nature of Effect on 
Baseline/Indicators

Assessment of Effect

Short
term

Medium
term

Long 
term

11. To protect and 
enhance biodiversity 
and the viability of 
endangered species, 
habitats and sites of 
geological importance.

Major positive effect. Will not 
affect the indicators, but 
should help to improve 
biodiversity and habitats in the 
long term. 0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to a 
reduction in demand for energy and a reduction in 
energy production from fossil fuels that cause 
pollution, which can negatively affect biodiversity 
and habitats. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

12. To protect and 
improve the quality of 
inland waters.

Major positive effect. Over 
time should lead to more 
inland waters complying with 
river water quality standards.

0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to a 
reduction in demand for energy and a reduction in 
energy production from fossil fuels that cause 
pollution of inland waterways. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

13. To protect and 
improve air quality.

Major positive effect. Over 
time should help to lead to a 
reduction in sulphur dioxide 
levels.

0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: High 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to a 
reduction in demand for energy and a reduction in 
energy production from fossil fuels that cause air 
pollution.

Mitigation/improvement: None

14. To restore and 
protect land and soil.

Neutral.

0 0 0 

This policy is unlikely to have any effects on restoring 
and protecting land and soil.

15. To mitigate and 
adapt to climate 
change. 

Major positive effect. Over 
time this policy should help to 
reduce the emission of 
greenhouse gases, such as 
carbon dioxide. 0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: High 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to a 
reduction in demand for energy, greater levels of 
renewable energy production and a reduction in 
energy production from fossil fuels that cause 
pollution.

Mitigation/improvement: None

16. To ensure the 
prudent use of natural 
resources and the 
sustainable 
management of 
existing resources. 

Major positive effect. Will not 
affect the indicators but 
should lead to the more 
prudent use of natural 
resources over time. 0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: High 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to a 
reduction in demand for energy and a reduction in 
demand for raw materials used in energy 
production and as building materials. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

25

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 122



Appendix 1 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Sustainability  
Objective

Predicted Effects
Justification for assessment noting:

Likelihood/certainty of effect occurring (high/

med/low)

Geographical scale of effect

Temporary or permanent effect

Assumptions made

Recommendations for mitigation/improvement

Nature of Effect on 
Baseline/Indicators

Assessment of Effect

Short
term

Medium
term

Long 
term

23. To deliver rural 
renaissance.

Neutral.

0 0 0 

This policy is likely to have little effect on delivering a 
rural renaissance as relatively little development takes 
place in the rural areas, in comparison to the urban 
areas.

24. To secure 
economic inclusion.

Minor positive effect. May not 
necessarily impact upon the 
indicators, but may result in 
job creation in the 
renewables/waste 
management sectors.

0 + + 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will help to 
provide greater business opportunities, which will 
result in job creation.

Mitigation/improvement: None

25. To develop and 
maintain a healthy 
labour market. 

Minor positive effect. Will not 
affect the indicators, but may 
provide job opportunities in 
the renewables/waste 
management sectors.

0 + + 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will help to 
provide greater business opportunities, which will 
result in job creation.

Mitigation/improvement: None

Summary appraisal against economic objectives:

0 + + 

This policy should have a minor positive impact in 
the long-term in terms of most of the economic 
objectives. However, it is likely to have little 
impact in terms of reducing disparities of the 
Borough’s economic performance or in delivering 
a rural renaissance.

26

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 123



Appendix 1 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Sustainability  
Objective

Predicted Effects Justification for assessment noting:

Likelihood/certainty of effect occurring (high/

med/low)

Geographical scale of effect

Temporary or permanent effect

Assumptions made

Recommendations for mitigation/improvement

Nature of Effect on 
Baseline/Indicators

Assessment of Effect

Short
term

Medium
term

Long 
term

Social Objectives 

1. To reduce social 
exclusion.

No link. 
/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and reducing 
social exclusion.

2. To reduce the need 
to travel, improve 
choice and use of 
sustainable transport 
modes. 

No link. 

/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and reducing the 
need to travel, improving choice and the use of 
sustainable transport modes.

3. To improve physical 
health and mental 
health and reduce 
health inequalities. 

Minor positive effect. Should 
have some positive health 
benefits in the long term in 
terms of increasing life 
expectancy and decreasing 
the number of residents 
describing their health as not 
good.

0 0 + 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to 
greater levels of renewable energy production and 
a reduction in energy production from fossil fuels 
that cause pollution. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

4. To improve access 
to good quality 
affordable and 
resource efficient 
housing. 

Significant positive effect. Will 
not affect the indicators, but 
should enable the provision of 
renewable energy schemes 
on housing sites resulting in 
more resource efficient 
housing.

0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: None 

Mitigation/improvement: None

5. To reduce crime, 
disorder and the fear 
of crime.

No link. 

/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and reducing 
crime, disorder and the fear of crime.  

6. To enable groups 
and communities to 
contribute to decision 
making.

No link. 

/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and enabling 
groups and communities to contribute to decision-
making.

7. To develop strong 
and positive 
relationships between 
people from different 
backgrounds and 
communities

No link. 

/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and developing 
strong and positive relationships between people from 
different backgrounds.

Policy SR2: Renewable Energy Schemes 

Key to Sustainability Appraisal Effects

/    No link
+   Minor Positive
++ Major Positive

0   Neutral
-   Minor Negative
-- Major Negative

27

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 124



Appendix 1 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Sustainability  
Objective

Predicted Effects Justification for assessment noting:

Likelihood/certainty of effect occurring (high/

med/low)

Geographical scale of effect

Temporary or permanent effect

Assumptions made

Recommendations for mitigation/improvement

Nature of Effect on 
Baseline/Indicators

Assessment of Effect

Short
term

Medium
term

Long 
term

8. To improve access 
to an use of basic 
goods, services and 
amenities for all 
groups.

No link. 

/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and improving 
access to and the use of basic goods, services and 
amenities for all groups.

Summary of appraisal against social objectives:

0 0 + 

This policy should help to improve health in the 
long-term and have a significant positive impact in 
terms of the provision of resource efficient 
housing, but will have a minimal impact on the 
other social objectives.  

9. To protect, enhance 
and manage the 
diversity of cultural 
and built environment 
and archaeological 
assets.

Neutral. The policy includes 
criteria that aim to protect the 
visual appearance of the local 
area, including the urban 
environment and designated 
sites. Will not affect the 
indicators.

0 0 0 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That the policy criteria will 
prevent adverse impacts on the built environment. 

Mitigation/improvement: None.

10. To protect and 
enhance 
environmental quality, 
local character and 
accessibility of the 
landscape across the 
Borough 

Neutral. The policy includes 
criteria that aim to protect 
landscape character, the 
visual appearance of the local 
area and designated sites. 
Will not affect the indicators.

0 0 0 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That the policy criteria will 
prevent adverse impacts on landscape character. 

Mitigation/improvement: None.

11. To protect and 
enhance biodiversity 
and the viability of 
endangered species, 
habitats and sites of 
geological importance.

Major positive effect. Will not 
affect the indicators, but 
should help to improve 
biodiversity and habitats in the 
long term.

0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to 
greater levels of renewable energy production and 
a reduction in energy production from fossil fuels 
that cause pollution, which can negatively affect 
biodiversity and habitats. That the policy criteria 
will prevent renewable energy schemes causing 
harm to designated sites and biodiversity.  

Mitigation/improvement: None

12. To protect and 
improve the quality of 
inland waters.

Major positive effect. Over 
time should lead to more 
inland waters complying with 
river water quality standards.

0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to 
greater levels of renewable energy production and 
a reduction in energy production from fossil fuels 
that cause pollution of inland waterways. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

Environmental Objectives 

28

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 125



Appendix 1 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Sustainability  
Objective

Predicted Effects Justification for assessment noting:

Likelihood/certainty of effect occurring (high/

med/low)

Geographical scale of effect

Temporary or permanent effect

Assumptions made

Recommendations for mitigation/improvement

Nature of Effect on 
Baseline/Indicators

Assessment of Effect

Short
term

Medium
term

Long 
term

13. To protect and 
improve air quality.

Major positive effect. Over 
time should help to lead to a 
reduction in sulphur dioxide 
levels.

0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: High 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to 
greater levels of renewable energy production and 
a reduction in energy production from fossil fuels 
that cause air pollution. 

Mitigation/improvement: None.

14. To restore and 
protect land and soil. 

Neutral.

0 0 0 

This policy is unlikely to have any effects on restoring 
and protecting land and soil.

15. To mitigate and 
adapt to climate 
change. 

Major positive effect. Over 
time this policy should help to 
reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions.

0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: High 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to 
greater levels of renewable energy production and 
a reduction in energy production from fossil fuels 
that cause pollution. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

16. To ensure the 
prudent use of natural 
resources and the 
sustainable 
management of 
existing resources.

Major positive effect. Will not 
affect the indicators but 
should lead to the more 
prudent use of natural 
resources over time. 0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: High 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to 
greater levels of renewable energy production and 
a reduction in demand for raw materials used in 
energy generation from non-renewable sources. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

17. To minimise the 
requirement for energy 
use, promote efficient 
use and increase the 
use of energy from 
renewable resources.

Major positive effect. Should 
lead to an increase in the 
number of planning 
applications that include 
capacity for energy production 
from renewable sources and 
increase the Borough’s 
installed capacity for energy 
production from renewable 
sources.  

0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: High 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to 
greater levels of renewable energy production and 
a reduction in energy production from non-
renewable sources. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

18. To minimise waste 
and increase re-use, 
recycling and recovery 
rates.

Major positive effect. Will not 
affect the indicators but 
should lead to a reduction in 
waste by-products from non–
renewable resources.  0 + ++ 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to 
greater levels of renewable energy production and 
a reduction in waste by-products from energy 
generation from non renewable sources. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

0 + ++ 

This policy should have many significant long-
term positive impacts on the environment, 
providing that it encourages greater levels of 
renewable energy production and a reduction in 
energy production from non-renewable sources. 

Summary of appraisal against environmental 
objectives:

29

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 126



Appendix 1 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Sustainability  
Objective

Predicted Effects Justification for assessment noting:

Likelihood/certainty of effect occurring (high/

med/low)

Geographical scale of effect

Temporary or permanent effect

Assumptions made

Recommendations for mitigation/improvement

Nature of Effect on 
Baseline/Indicators

Assessment of Effect

Short
term

Medium
term

Long 
term

Economic Objectives 

19. To reduce 
disparities of the 
Borough’s economic 
performance.

No link. 

/ / / 

There is no link between this policy and reducing 
disparities of the Borough’s economic performance.

20. To exploit the 
growth potential of 
business sectors. 

Minor positive effect. Over 
time this policy could lead to 
business growth in the 
renewables sector.

0 + + 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will help to 
provide greater business opportunities in the 
renewables sector.  

Mitigation/improvement: None

21. To develop and 
market the Borough’s 
image.

Minor positive effect. May 
increase the % of people 
satisfied with the Borough as 
a place to live and help to 
improve the Borough’s image. 

0 + + 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will lead to 
greater levels of renewable energy production and 
will be viewed positively by people.  

Mitigation/improvement: None

22. To deliver urban 
renaissance.

Minor positive effect. Will not 
affect the indicators, but may 
provide job opportunities and 
investment in urban areas. 0 + + 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide, in urban areas 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That some renewable energy 
generation schemes will take place in urban areas. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

23. To deliver rural 
renaissance.

Minor positive effect. Will not 
affect the indicators but may 
provide job opportunities and 
investment in rural areas. 0 + + 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide, in rural areas 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That some renewable energy 
generation schemes will take place in rural areas. 

Mitigation/improvement: None

24. To secure 
economic inclusion.

Minor positive effect. May not 
necessarily impact upon the 
indicators, but may result in 
job creation in the renewables 
sector.

0 + + 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will help to 
provide greater business opportunities resulting in 
job creation.

Mitigation/improvement: None

25. To develop and 
maintain a healthy 
labour market.

Minor positive effect. Will not 
affect the indicators, but may 
provide job opportunities in 
the renewables sector. 0 + + 

Likelihood/certainty: Medium 

Scale: Borough-wide 

Temporary/permanent: Permanent 

Assumptions made: That this policy will help to 
provide greater business opportunities resulting in 
job creation.

Mitigation/improvement: None

0 + + 

This policy should have a minor positive impact in 
the long-term in terms of most of the economic 
objectives, but is likely to have little impact in 
terms of reducing disparities of the Borough’s 
economic performance.

Summary appraisal against economic objectives:

30

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 127



Appendix 2 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Tests of Soundness (of a Development Plan Document - ‘the Plan’)

Procedural:

1. It has been prepared in accordance with the Local Development Scheme. 

2. It has been prepared in compliance with the Statement of Community Involvement, or with the 
minimum requirements set out in the Regulations where no statement of community involvement 
exists.

3. The plan and its policies have been subjected to Sustainability Appraisal. 

Conformity: 

4. It is a spatial plan which is consistent with national planning policy and in general conformity with the 
Regional Spatial Strategy for the region or, in London, the spatial development strategy and it has 
properly had regard to any other relevant plans, policies and strategies relating to the area or to 
adjoining areas. 

5. It has had regard to the authority’s Community Strategy. 

Coherence, consistency and effectiveness:

6. The strategies/policies/allocations in the plan are coherent and consistent within and between 
Development Plan Documents prepared by the authority and by neighbouring authorities, where 
cross boundary issues are relevant. 

7. The strategies/policies/allocations represent the most appropriate in all the circumstances, having 
considered the relevant alternatives, and they are founded on a robust and credible evidence base. 

8. There are clear mechanisms for implementation and monitoring. 

9. The plan is reasonably flexible to enable it to deal with changing circumstances. 

31

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 128



Appendix 3 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Relevant Strategic Policies 

Regional Planning Guidance adopted March 2003 

Relevant policies: DP1 - Economy in the use of Land and Buildings, DP3 - Quality in New Development, 
SD8 - Development in the Wider Countryside, EC5 - Regional Investment Sites; RU2 - Diversification of 
the Rural Economy; EQ5 - A Regional Approach to Waste Minimisation,  ER1 - Management of the North 
West’s Natural and Built and Historic Environment; ER2 - Landscape Character, ER5 - Biodiversity and 
Nature Conservation; ER7 - Water Resources; ER8 - Development and Flood Risk; ER11 - Secondary 
and Recycled Aggregates; ER13 - Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency. 

Regional Spatial Strategy submitted January 2006 

Policies that are relevant; DP1 - Core Development Principles;EM5 - Integrated Water Management; EM9 
- Secondary and Recycled Aggregates; EM11 - Waste Management and New Development; EM16 - A 
Framework or Sustainable Energy in the NW; EM12 - Energy Conservation and Efficiency and Policy 
EM17: Renewable Energy. Including proposed amendments in Panel Report into Examination in Public. 

Joint Lancashire Structure Plan adopted March 2005 

Policy 20; Lancashire’s Landscapes; Policy 21 - Lancashire’s Natural and Man-Made Heritage; Policy 24 
- Flood Risk; Policy 25 - Renewable Energy; Policy 27 - Development and Waste Minimisation.

32

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 129



Im
p
ro

v
e
 e

n
e

rg
y
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
(S

A
P

 
ra

ti
n

g
)

4
2

0
 t

o
n

n
e

s
 

£
2

8
,0

0
0

2
0

0
6

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
, 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

 P
ri

v
a

te
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 

L
e

a
d

 P
a

rt
n

e
r 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

O
th

e
r 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
H

o
m

e
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n

c
y
/e

n
e

rg
y
 s

u
p

p
lie

rs
 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 C
O

2
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

fu
e

l 
c
o

s
ts

 

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l
c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 t

o
 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o

 r
e

c
y
c
le

 
w

a
s
te

1
0

%
 

2
0

0
8

 
L

a
n

d
fi
ll 

T
a

x
 F

u
n

d
 b

id
 

L
e

a
d

 P
a

rt
n

e
r 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

O
th

e
r 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
L

L
C

.E
n

v
.C

h
o

rl
e

y
 C

iv
ic

 
S

o
c
ie

ty
/N

W
D

A
/C

h
a

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

e
/l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

R
e

c
y
c
le

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

w
a

s
te

 a
s
 %

 o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri

s
in

g
 

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
n

e
rg

y
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g

h

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

2
0

0
8

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

L
e

a
d

 P
a

rt
n

e
r 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

O
th

e
r 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
L

L
C

./
R

e
n

e
w

a
b

le
s
 n

w
/

S
N

W

P
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y

P
ro

m
o

te
 w

a
s
te

 
M

in
im

is
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

5
0

 
2

0
0

8
 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

L
e

a
d

 P
a

rt
n

e
r 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

O
th

e
r 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
L

L
C

/E
A

/l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
/

L
C

D
L

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

a
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 w

a
s
te

 
m

in
im

is
a

ti
o

n

C
h

o
rl

e
y
’s

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
0

5
-2

0
2

5
  
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 E

x
tr

a
c

ts
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

 -
 R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 “

P
o

c
k
e

ts
 o

f 
In

e
q

u
a
li

ty
”

G
o
a
l 
2
 -

 T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

w
it
h
 g

o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

 -
 T

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
n

d
 F

e
e
l 

o
f 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 a

s
 a

 G
o

o
d

 P
la

c
e
 t

o
 L

iv
e
 a

n
d

 V
is

it
 

G
o
a
l 
1
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

u
rb

a
n
 a

n
d
 r

u
ra

l 
s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 w

ild
lif

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
  

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 v
is

it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
to

rs
. 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 i

n
to

 2
0
1
6
: 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 -

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 D
o

c
u

m
e
n

t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

 
  

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
C

h
o

rl
e

y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 L

o
c

a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

 

3
3

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 130



Appendix 5 

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

Glossary 

AMR – Annual Monitoring Report (assesses the progress of the Local Development Scheme and the extent to 

which Local Development Plan policies area being implemented).

BREEAM – Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method ( Industry standard used to 

measure sustainability of buildings).

CS – Core Strategy (set out the long- term spatial vision for the local planning authority and spatial objectives 

and strategic policies to deliver that vision).GONW – Government Office for the North West  (local office 

of Central government in Manchester). 

DPD – Development Plan Document (Spatial planning documents that are subject to independent 

examination, together with the Regional Spatial Strategy make up the Development Plan.) 

Issues and Options- (produced during the early production stage of the preparation of Development Plan 

documents and may be issued for consultation to meet the requirements of Regulation 25.) 

JLSP – Joint Lancashire Structure Plan (development plan document that is part of the L D D  –  L o c a l 

Development Document (collective name for Development Plan Documents, Supplementary Planning 

Documents and Statement of Community Involvement)

LDF – Local Development Framework (portfolio of Local Development Documents. It includes Development 

Plan Documents, Supplementary Planning Documents, Statement of Community Involvement,  the Local 

Development Scheme and Annual Monitoring Reports).

LDS – Local Development Scheme (sets out the programme for preparing Local Development Documents)

PINS – Planning Inspectorate (Independent Inspectorate appointed by the Secretary of State to judge on 

documents and representations made. Write reports on whether the proposed policies are acceptable 

following on from the Examination in Public, which the Local Authority must accept.)) 

PPS – Planning Policy Statement (Central Government planning policy document that is required to be 

followed when determining planning applications and producing policies). 

Preferred Options- (produced as part of the preparation of Development Plan Documents, and is issued for 

formal public consultation as required by Regulation 26.) 

Public Examination -  (hearing in which the development plan is tested for soundness. Non-adversarial way of 

testing soundness of plan. Led by Planning Inspector who will make report that the Council will have to 

accept).

RSS- Regional Spatial Strategy (sets out the region’s policies in relation to the development and use of land. 

Makes up part of the development plan). 

SA – Sustainability Appraisal (required for all local development documents to ensure that their social, 

economic and environmental impacts are tested). 

SCI – Statement of Community Involvement (sets out the standards which authorities will achieve when 

including communities in the preparation of local development documents and development control 

decisions). 

SEA – Strategic Environmental Assessment (environmental assessment of plans, policies and programmes).   

Soundness - (nine tests that a plan should satisfy – it includes the following categories, “procedural”, 

“conformity”, “coherence, consistency and effectiveness” ) 

Submission Stage - (Local Development Plan document which is submitted to the Secretary of state prior to 

the Examination, at the same time there will be public consultation for six weeks).

SPD – Supplementary Planning Document (Provides supplementary information in respect of policies in 

Development Plan Documents.)

34

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 131



NOTES

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources - Submission Development Plan Document October 2007 Chorley Borough Local Development  Framework

35

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 132



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Development and 
Regeneration 

(Introduced by the Executive 
Member for Economic 

Development and Regeneration) 

Overview Scrutiny Committee 
Executive Cabinet 

03/09/07 
06/09/07 

 

 

STRATEGIC HOUSING PRIORITIES 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To explain the strategic priorities of the Council and a brief summary of the focus of the 
team’s activity in the short term. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. That the report be noted. 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. There are a number of strategic priorities, which the Council will be taking forward over the 
next twelve months and which will be the focus of the Strategic Housing Team, following 
the successful transfer of the Council housing stock in March 2007.  These priorities include 
the prevention of homelessness, increasing the provision of affordable housing in the 
Borough and developing a Choice Based Lettings scheme.  In order to deliver these aims, it 
is essential that robust data be gathered regarding the housing market, both locally and on 
a sub-regional basis, which will inform these policies. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

4. To ensure that the key strategic housing issues are properly addressed. 
 

 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
5. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

 Improved access to public services 4 

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

 Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

 Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

4 

 

 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 133



BACKGROUND 
 
6. The large-scale voluntary transfer of Council housing stock to Chorley Community 

Housing was completed in March 2007, with the remaining strategic and enabling function 
now led by the Strategic Housing Team, which consists of a manager, a Home 
Improvement Officer and two Housing Needs and Investment Officers.  All local 
authorities are now required to understand the local housing market and to take 
appropriate steps in order to facilitate a balanced housing market, consisting of a mix of 
tenures and types of accommodation and associated products, which meet local need and 
aspirations.  This team is now up to full capacity as from 4 June 2007 and this report is a 
summary of the strategic priorities, which the team have identified and which will inform 
the activities and programme over the next few months. 

 

HOMELESSNESS & HOUSING OPTIONS 
 
7. Chorley Council provides a Housing Options service for customers, incorporating 

homelessness and housing advice.  This service was transferred to Chorley Community 
Housing (CCH), from March 2007 onwards.  The Council remains accountable for the 
decisions made regarding homeless presentations and also for reporting on performance 
on homelessness and the prevention of homelessness. 

 
8. The current situation in Chorley requires a systematic review of operational procedures 

and policy, coupled with the drafting of a robust prevention strategy for 2008-2012.  For 
example, the total number of those presenting themselves as homeless in 2006/2007 was 
689 compared to 465 in the previous year.  This has occurred as a result of a number of 
factors, including a lack of affordable housing for rent and owner occupation in the 
Borough. 

 
9. Nationally, there is a target for local authorities to eliminate the use of bed and breakfast 

accommodation.  However, in Chorley, the use of bed and breakfast accommodation is 
becoming increasingly common, with a total of 21 households housed in bed and 
breakfast accommodation for the whole of 2006/2007, compared to 34 households in just 
the first quarter of this year.  The Council is committed to reducing its reliance on 
temporary accommodation especially bed and breakfast and we are developing an action 
plan in order to address this quickly and in partnership with CCH and other agencies. 

 
10. Immediately following the transfer of the operational delivery of the Housing Options team, 

the frequency and vigour of legal challenges made to the Council upon decisions 
regarding homeless applicants (reviews of which, are carried out by officers within the 
Strategic Housing Team) has increased significantly. 

 
11. Therefore in order to tackle these issues, a number of actions are being undertaken, 

including the establishment of a Housing Options Partnership Steering Group between the 
Council and the Chorley Community Housing.  A revised procedure for determining 
homeless applications and associated documentation is currently underway along with a 
renewal of the partnerships between local agencies.  This includes the engagement of the 
homeless agencies and social services, in order to review and revise procedures and so 
assist with improvements in delivery of outcomes and targets, including the increased use 
of preventative measures. 

 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 
12. There are a number of factors influencing the housing market in Chorley, which are 

creating an issue of affordability.  The housing waiting list for social rented 
accommodation has almost doubled in recent years to approximately 6,000 applicants.  
Coupled with a lack of private rented accommodation and a buoyant housing market with 
above average house prices, which together with local aspirations for home ownership, 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 134



has created a situation where many households within the Borough are unable to obtain 
accommodation. 

 
13. A key measure included within the Corporate Strategy is for the Council to provide 250 

affordable dwellings by March 2009.  Since April 2006, 8 dwellings have been built for 
local residents, with a further potential 104 in the pipeline and other early negotiations 
taking place with regards to potential developments. 

 
14. It is acknowledged that there is a need to review current policy and procedures including 

the definition of affordability for Chorley Borough and also the eligibility criteria for 
applicants seeking affordable housing. 

 
15. On the 4 November 2004 the Council adopted a definition of affordable housing.  The 

initial sale price being set in relation to average household earnings in the Borough.  
According to this definition, an affordable house is one sold initially at a maximum of 
average household earnings in the Borough multiplied by two point five. 

 
16. It is proposed to update the lending multiplier, in order to bring it inline with national 

affordable housing policy and guidance and to those adopted by our sub-regional partner 
authorities.  There is also a need to take into account changes in income and 
demography, which have occurred over the past three years.  A report dedicated to 
affordable housing which will include a proposed definition of affordable housing for 
Chorley, in addition to action plan and projections for delivery for 2007-2009 will follow in 
September. 

 
17. An action plan is currently being drawn up in order to increase the provision of affordable 

housing units in the Borough.  This will include of the use of Section 106 Agreements and 
in particular, to ensure that affordable housing provision is maximised where possible and 
is in keeping with requirements of national policy, ie of a mixed, dispersed tenure obtained 
on site where appropriate. 

 
18. Officers are also exploring more creative methods of increasing supply, including the use 

of private rented sector properties for voluntary leasing, (which involves the provision of a 
long lease on a private rented property, which is subsequently refurbished and let as a 
social rented property by an RSL (Registered Social Landlord).  Shared ownership is also 
an option, where a private property is acquired by an RSL, through a partnership 
agreement and provided to eligible applicants, under a shared ownership scheme.  It is 
recognised that in order to facilitate this new area of work, there is a need to establish an 
effective partnership with RSLs in the Borough and for further exploration and scoping 
work to be undertaken.  A paper is expected to be submitted to Executive Committee 
regarding these types of schemes in the next few months.  

 
19. The Housing Development Forum meeting was held on the 17 July 2007 and it is 

envisaged that this will become a more regular meeting, which will link into the proposed 
Chorley Strategic Housing Partnership (mentioned below). 

 
20. Recent changes in national planning policy guidance have resulted in the reduction in the 

size threshold at and above which we can seek the provision of affordable housing as an 
element of overall development.  The new threshold is a minimum of 15 dwellings, in 
contrast to the previous threshold of 25 dwellings or more (or 1 hectare or more).  The 
Government published Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (PPS3) in November 2006 
and this will be a material consideration in the determination of planning applications for 
housing development. 

 
STRATEGIC HOUSING MARKET & NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 
21. In order to inform current objectives and strategic priorities of the Council, there is a need 

to gather market data and information about housing needs, property prices and income 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 135



levels and to this end, the Council is exploring the joint procurement of the Hometrack 
Housing Market Intelligence System.  This system is the market leader in providing 
income and property data to local and regional government.  This date would provide a 
baseline for the affordable housing policy and inform the drafting of the 2009-2012 
strategy, in addition to informing planning policy.  The cost of this system is £7,200. 

 
CHOICE BASED LETTINGS 
 
22. There is a commitment of the Council to introduce choice based letting in order to provide 

customers with a housing allocations service, which is based on the principle of choice 
and control over where applicants live.  This provides an opportunity for authorities to 
develop robust partnerships with RSLs to make properties more accessible to applicants. 

 
23. Choice based letting schemes are very different from the traditional way of allocating 

housing via the waiting list.  Choice based letting allows applicants to apply for vacancies, 
which are advertised widely in the neighbourhood (eg in the local newspaper or on a 
website).  Priority is given to those in urgent need but where possible properties are 
allocated on the basis of who has waited the longest.  There is a local scheme jointly 
commissioned by South Ribble and Preston Councils and partnership to this scheme is to 
be considered, along with an appraisal of a stand-alone scheme for Chorley. 

 
PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING 
 
24. As a strategic housing authority, the Council has a duty to identify strategic priorities for 

private sector housing and this incorporates a range of issues from dealing with empty 
properties and the poor management of private rented accommodation, to the need for 
disabled facility grants and energy efficiency measures, linking into the priority to reduce 
domestic carbon emissions.  There is also a requirement by law to ensure that certain 
private rented properties are licensed and this needs to be progressed in Chorley. 

 
25. One of the priorities identified by Government is that of decent homes, with a national 

target, which has been set to reduce the number of vulnerable households in non-decent 
accommodation to 70% by 2010.  The 2004 Private Sector Stock Condition Survey in 
Chorley indicated that current levels are approximately 3% short of this figure and some of 
the work of the Home Improvement Agency is addressing this.  However, there is a need 
to continue and build upon the work to improve on the monitoring of this, and to increase 
the number of empty properties back into use.  There is money available for housing and 
some of this is to be allocated for the recruitment of a Strategic Housing Officer (private 
sector) to work proactively in the private sector. 

 
ENERGY EFFICIENCY 
 
26. Energy efficiency in the home provides a significant contribution to the reduction (including 

carbon) of greenhouse gas emission and is a priority both nationally and locally.  The 
Home Energy Conservation Act 1995 requires all councils to devise strategies for 
reducing energy consumption, in order to meet national targets.  The Council currently 
provide energy efficiency grants and it is intended to tender the installer contract to accord 
with procurement rules.  As part of this process, it is proposed to add a discount scheme 
(able-to-pay) to expand the range of services we offer and thereby reach a wider range of 
people.  There is also a plan being developed in order to bring in external funding so that 
insulation measures are not solely reliant on Council capital budgets; and to increase the 
number of Government-funded Warm Front Grants (WGF) carried out in the area.  
Officers have engaged in discussions with Eaga plc regarding WGF and should yield 
positive outcomes. 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 136



 
HOME REPAIR ASSISTANCE GRANTS 
 
27. There is to be a revision of the grant-assisted domestic property condition assessment 

method carried out by the Home Improvement Agency, Anchor, which is in future, to be 
determined on the grounds of the Housing & Health Safety Rating System (HHSRS) and 
the Decent Homes standard, as opposed instead of the old ‘fitness’ standard.  This will 
add value to the process as it will contribute to our target to meet decency and also 
highlight any issues of housing disrepair.  Following the implementation of these changes, 
there is also to be a revision of the grant policy to reflect the above assessment criteria 
change. 

 
DISABLED FACILITIES GRANTS 
 
28. The Council current provides disabled facility grants through Anchor and this service has 

been successful and is in demand.  There are plans to submit a bid to GONW for 
additional funding, which will require Executive member approval. 

 
STRATEGIC HOUSING PARTNERSHIP 
 
29. It is recognised that in order to develop a strategy, which is fit for purpose and delivers 

real change for customers, all stakeholders must be part of the process, from early 
consultation to the delivery of objectives and tasks.  Therefore it is proposed that a 
partnership be established, a “Chorley Strategic Housing Partnership” which will bring 
together key stakeholders in order to provide strategic direction in Chorley, to monitor 
delivery the existing Housing Strategy and to inform the development of the new strategy 
for 2009-2012. 

 
30. The Partnership will consist of key public and private sector partners including the 

Council, Chorley’s RSL partners, developers, the community and voluntary sector, health 
and finance.  The development and delivery of key projects, including Choice based 
lettings, stock rationalisation, the Homeless network and New Development, will be 
overseen by focus groups, which will feed into the strategic partnership. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
31. The Strategic Housing Team now have a number of key priorities and objectives to 

achieve, in addition to the delivery of corporate and national targets, and detailed action 
plans for each work area are currently being devised.  The effective use of project 
management and budgetary control will be key to the delivery of this programme and the 
associated outcomes, along with partnership working. 

 
IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
32. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments 

are included: 
 

Finance 4 Customer Services   

Human Resources 4 Equality and Diversity  

Legal    

 
 There are a number of risks associated with proposals included within this report.  Failure 

to deliver these strategic objectives could have an adverse effect on the reputation of the 
Council, particularly given that a number of these are required by statute.  The CPA 
assessment in particular could be affected by the poor performance on targets around 
homelessness.  Without appropriate and timely intervention, the costs associated  with the 
use of bed and breakfast accommodation could spiral and reduce the availability of 
funding for more appropriate and long-term solutions for homelessness prevention.  

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 137



Operationally, these proposals will have an impact on staffing and will require effective 
management of workloads and delegation of tasks, in order to ensure they are delivered. 

 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
33. There are currently funds available in the Council’s budget to finance some of these 

projects, specifically there are sums of £788k available to fund affordable housing 
schemes and other private sector initiatives.  However some of the work may require a 
review of current resourcing levels once clear view of the work required is identified.  
Members may recall that the current Strategic Housing Structure is fairly new and that a 
review was scheduled after 12 months of operation to ensure it was fit for purpose.  Any 
resource implications identified from that review will need to be considered in terms of the 
Council’s progress on corporate priorities and the overall budgetary position. 

 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
34. It is clearly essential that the Strategic Housing Team are suitably able to manage this 

work especially in terms of project management, financial/budget management and 
management of time and resources, as referred to in this report.  Appropriate support 
through formal and/or informal training should be sought if required to assist staff with the 
delivery of the outcomes as stated, eg project management training and support.  This 
would be supported through the Corporate Training Budget given the clear links with the 
delivery of a key corporate objective.  Operationally, the Director of Development and 
Regeneration and Strategic Housing Manager will have a key role in ensuring that 
workloads and capacity are managed effectively within current staffing levels. 

 
 
 
JANE E MEEK 
DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
 
 

 

Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

Planning Policy Statement 
(PPS3) 

November 2006   

 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Zoe Whiteside 5711 17 August 2007 ADMINREP/1708LM1 

 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 138



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoods and 

Environment 
(Introduced by the Executive 

Member for Streetscene 
Neighbourhoods and 

Environment) 

Executive Cabinet 
6 September 

2007 

 

 

CAR PARKING STRATEGY  

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. The purpose of the report is to identify temporary shortfalls in parking space in 2008/09 
and recommend a course of action. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. It is recommended that the proposals set out below be approved, subject to the  
completion of the necessary statutory processes and that Officers be authorised to 
implement the necessary statutory procedures. 

 
3. It is recommended that the works to increase the capacity in the Fleet Street and Portland 

Street car parks be implemented at an early date, subject to compliance with the Council’s 
capital spending procedures. 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

4. During 2008 and early 2009 part of the Flat Iron Car Park will be taken up by construction 
of the Market Walk 2 development.  On completion that will provide an abundance of extra 
parking space.  Within the build period for Market Walk 2 the County Council will build a 
new Register Office on part of the West Street Car Park.  The combined loss of space, until 
Market Walk 2 is complete, is 271 spaces.  The report presents proposals to offset the 
effects of these developments on parking space by increasing space and turnover on 
Council car parks in the town centre. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

5. The recommendations are necessary to implement the most effective and cost effective 
course of action. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

6. The recommendations are necessary to implement the most effective and cost effective  
course of action. 

 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 

 

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 139



7. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

 
� 

Improved access to public services  

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

 Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

� 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

 Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

8. The development of Market Walk 2 from early 2008 to mid 2009 and the construction of a 
new Register Office in that period will lead to losses of parking space totalling 271 spaces.  
The Register Office will require a further 10 spaces during construction.  The increase in 
parking space included in the Market Walk development is about 560 spaces, more than 
offsetting any losses when complete. 

 

9. Spare capacity on a Saturday is about 25 to 30% or about 300 spaces.  Spare capacity on a 
Tuesday is up to about 10% or up to about 100+ spaces.  The main difference arises from 
the take up of long stay permit rights during the week.  In considering how we might address 
the temporary shortfall we need only address Tuesdays, therefore for the purposes of the 
calculations we can assume a worst case of 5% spare capacity – ie 50 spare spaces.  This 
has been established by surveys and, effectively, provides a “float” as customers come and 
go. 

 
10. By amending the relevant Traffic Regulation Orders it is possible to reduce maximum stays 

on the remaining area of the Flat Iron Car Park, Portland Street Car Park and the other short 
stay areas to 3 hours.  This will increase turnover, giving a benefit equivalent to about 60 
short stay spaces. 
 

11. Surveys indicate that it is possible to remark Portland Street, gaining about 35 spaces. 

 
12. It is also possible to remark Fleet Street, removing redundant fences, and give the former 

staff area over to general use, providing 70 spaces and 52 spaces respectively. 
 

13. It would also be feasible to develop options for the Flat Iron Market and the remaining 
parking area in consultation with interested parties. 

 

14. The total additional space to be gained can potentially be equivalent to 307 spaces, with an    
operational float of 50 spaces. 

 
15. It will be necessary to identify new disabled spaces at each location.  This has no 

significant effect on capacity. 
 
16. The cost of the work required in the Portland Street and Fleet Street Car Parks is 

estimated at £10,000 plus any consequential utility costs, which are being investigated but 
are expected to be of no consequence. 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 

17. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments 
are included: 

 

 

Finance � Customer Services   

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 140



Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  
Legal    

 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
18. The report identifies a sum of £10,000 required to undertake the remarking work at   
            Portland Street and the adjustments to the Fleet Street Car Park.  I propose that  
            unallocated Section 106 monies that are in effect sums remaining from transport related  
            agreements are utilised to provide the necessary funding. 
 
JOHN LECHMERE 
DIRECTOR OF STREETSCENE, NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Keith Allen 5250 22 August 2007 ADMINREP/REPORT 

 

 

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 141



Agenda Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 143

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 14Agenda Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Sports Village - Feasibility Study
	SportsVillageFeasStudy

	6 Forward Plan
	7 The Chorley Partnership - Progress Report
	8 A Sustainable Community Strategy for Chorley,  2007 - 2025
	CommStratDocument

	9 Chorley Local Development Framework - Sustainable Resources Development Plan - Submission Document
	SusResDevPlanSubDoc

	10 Strategic Housing Priorities
	11 Car Parking Strategy
	14 Refuse and Recycling Contract - Options Appraisal

